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Company Summary

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

The Company The Company is an investment trust and its shares are listed on the London Stock

Exchange. It is a member of the Association of Investment Companies.

The Group’s net asset value at 30 September 2006 was £701 million and the market

capitalisation was £726 million.

Objective The investment objective of the Company is to achieve capital growth through a

focused portfolio of investments, particularly in companies whose share prices stand

at a discount to estimated underlying net asset value.

Investment Manager Asset Value Investors Limited (Customer Services: 0845 850 0181)

Capital Structure The Company has Ordinary Shares, Debenture Stock and Equities Index Loan Stock in

issue. A full explanation of the capital structure is given on pages 19 and 20.

PEP/ISA Status The Company’s shares are eligible for ISAs and PEP transfers and can continue to be

held in existing PEPs.

Website The Company’s internet website is : www.british-empire.co.uk
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Financial Highlights

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

• Net asset value(‘NAV’)on a total return basis increases by14.3%

• NAV outperforms MSCI World Index by 5.6 percentage points

• Shares are at a premium of 3.5% to NAV at the year end

Performance Summary

30 September 30 September
2006 2005† % changeCapital Return

Net asset value per Share 438.08p 386.51p 13.34

Share price (mid market) 453.50p 400.00p 13.38

Total assets less current liabilities £732.52m £649.97m 12.70

Net asset value per Share (total return) 14.33

Indices

Datastream Global Growth Investment 
Trust Index* 4,316.93 3,852.10 12.07

Morgan Stanley Capital International 
World Index (£ adjusted total return) 2,204.25 2,028.38 8.67

Revenue and Dividends

Income £16.63m £13.11m 26.85

Earnings per Share 5.32p 4.13p 28.81

Ordinary Dividends per Share 4.00p 2.20p 81.82

Special Dividend per Share 1.00p 1.40p (28.57)

Premium/(Discount)

(difference between share price and net asset value) 3.52% 3.49% -

Total Expense Ratio 

(as percentage of average Shareholders’ funds)

Management, marketing and other expenses 0.76% 0.76% -

Performance fee 0.24% 0.36% -

2006 Year’s Highs/Lows High Low

Net asset value per Share 471.61p 371.94p

Share price (mid market) 502.50p 387.25p

Share Buy-backs

The Company did not purchase any of its Ordinary Shares for cancellation during the
year. The Company purchased 69,267 units of Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock
2013 for cancellation for £190,831.

* Index (based on total return) is subject to daily revision and the latest published figure is at 2 October 2006.

† The 30 September 2005 Total assets less current liabilities and Net asset value per Share figures are restated, in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (see note 22(a) on page 50).  Accordingly, the percentage changes
shown above reflect these restated figures.
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Chairman’s Statement

The past year has been another good one for your Company and for the value of your
investments.  Our net asset value per share increased by 14.3% compared with an
increase of 12.1% in our benchmark, the Datastream Global Growth Investment Trust
Index,  8.7% in the MSCI World Index and 14.7% in the FTSE All Share Index, all on
a total return basis.

Over 3 years the net asset value total return per share has grown by 104.1%

At the interim stage, we indicated our caution about market valuations and decided to
bank some of the profits from well performing investments where we believed upsides
were limited and the investment was trading closer to fair value.  The market shake-
out in May allowed us to use some of the liquidity to go back into the market for shares
which we felt were again standing at discounts to valuation.  Market levels are now
close to their year’s high and we have again been taking some profits, leading to a
higher level of liquidity available for investment at the year end.

Our income levels have remained strong as a combination of increasing dividends
from our invested companies and income from our liquidity work their way straight
through to our bottom line.  As Shareholders know, we are obliged to pay a minimum
of 85% of our net income to Shareholders by way of dividend if we are to retain our
all-important investment trust status.  In recent years the higher yields from our gilt
investments have persuaded us to pay part of the dividend as a special dividend to
reflect the possibility that, were we to become fully invested in equities again, yields
on our portfolio might fall, leading to a possible reduction in our total dividends in
future.  On this basis we are this year again recommending a special dividend of 1.0p
(2005: 1.4p) per share.  In addition, your Directors, taking into account the favourable
prospects for the longer term growth of dividends on our investments and the fact that
our opening revenue reserves were strong are recommending a final dividend of 3.2p
per share (2005: 1.6p) which, together with the interim dividend of 0.8p (2005: 0.6p)
brings the total ordinary and special dividends for the year to 5.0p, an increase of 39%
on last year’s total of 3.6p.

These are our first full year accounts to be prepared under International Financial
Reporting Standards. The move to bid pricing resulted in a reduction in the value of
our investments of some 2p per share.  Other than this and the requirement to show
this year’s final and special dividends in next year’s accounts (which I am unconvinced
adds to the clarity of our figures) there is little in the adoption of IFRS to bring to
Shareholders’ attention.  However, the additional work, particularly on the transitional
figures, has imposed considerable extra effort on our administrators, Phoenix
Administration, our auditors and  our audit committee and I am grateful to them all for
rising to the challenge.

Your Board has been strengthened this year with the appointment of Steve Bates who
brings wide industry experience to our deliberations.  As Chairman I feel we have the
balance of the Board about right.  All members make thoughtful and often incisive

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Iain Samuel Robertson CBE
Chairman

“Our shares 

have been

trading 

at a premium

throughout 

the year”
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contributions to our discussions and I am grateful to them for the time and effort which they put into our meetings.   The
annual evaluation of our Board and its committees has very much supported my view.  I very much hope that Shareholders
will support the election of Steve Bates to the Board for the first time, together with the re-election of Strone Macpherson
who retires this year in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.  In addition, having served for over ten years
I am also standing for re-election.  The Board does not believe that in an Investment Trust where experience of the
investment cycle is essential to the Board’s deliberations, length of service of itself should disqualify a Director.  We do
recognize the need, however, to refresh the Board periodically.

John Pennink has again performed excellently in the management of your Company’s investment portfolio.  He has good touch,
a deep understanding of what drives markets and a singular focus on finding value in markets which are ever better researched.
Consequently we had no hesitation in renewing our management contract with Asset Value Investors.  £1,000 invested when
John took over full time management of the portfolio four years ago would now be worth £2,912 while your dividends have
increased from 1.70p per share to 5.0p per share – enough said.  I commend the Investment Manager’s Review for your reading. 

As Chairman I believe your Board’s primary focus should be on the Company’s investments and investment performance
and so it is.  Your Board also looks at wider areas of risk and reviews the policies on areas such as gearing, hedging and
management of share premium or discount at least annually and more frequently if appropriate.  Our shares have been
trading at a premium throughout the year and we have considered whether to issue new shares into this market strength.
Given our high levels of liquidity and the difficulty in finding new under-valued investments which meet our investment
philosophy we decided not to undertake such issuance at the moment, but it remains open to us in the future.  We also
believe that the see-through discount on our equity portfolio is in excess of 10% which more than compensates for the
premium on the shares.

Your Board is also very conscious of its obligation to ensure that there are proper control systems in place to safeguard
your funds.  We have reviewed these systems and the performance of our service providers and consider that there are
robust controls in place.  There is further detail later in the Report.

For the future we are remaining cautious.  Interest rate tightening takes time to work its way through to the real economy
and we at least are not clear that the full effects have yet been seen in the US and UK economies, or that policymakers’
objectives have been met.  The recent softening in the oil price is welcome both as a stimulus and in easing inflationary
pressures. However, we believe that our investment philosophy of seeking out under-valued investments remains valid and
we shall continue to invest in line with that philosophy as opportunities arise.

Our marketing over the past three years has been targeted towards increasing our individual Shareholder base and I am
delighted that private Shareholders now account for over 50% of the ownership of the Company.  The Directors would
like to invite all Shareholders to a buffet lunch after the AGM.  If you would like to attend please reply on the enclosed
card.  I look forward to renewing my acquaintance with many of you then and to welcoming some of our many new
Shareholders to the meeting.

Iain Samuel Robertson CBE
Chairman
13 November 2006

Annual Report & Accounts 2006
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The Company’s History

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

1889 
Company founded as The Transvaal
Mortgage Loan and Finance Company
Limited.

1906
Name changed to British Empire Land
Mortgage and Loan Company Limited.

1966
British Empire Securities and General
Trust, as the Company is now known, opts
for Investment Trust status.  Net assets 
£1 million.

1984
Open offer and change of management to
Asset Value Investors Limited (formerly
Laurwood Limited).  Net assets £6 million.

1985
Rights Issue of 4 shares for 1.  Net assets
increased to £30 million.

1986
Acquisition of The Ashdown Investment
Trust PLC involving the issue of 31.4
million Ordinary Shares and £11.9 million
of 103/8% Debenture Stock 2011.

1989 
Offer for Schroder Global Trust plc 
leading to its unitisation.

1995
Acquisition of Selective Assets Trust plc
involving the issue of 45,451,489 Ordinary
Shares and 20,130,104 units of Equities
Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013.

1999 
Holding of 6.8% in Rue Impériale de Lyon
was sold for £45.9 million, realising a profit
of £25.6 million.

2000 
Net asset value (‘NAV’) per Share rose 
27% outperforming the MSCI World Index
by 7 percentage points. 

2001
Company exceeds the MSCI World Index
by 20 percentage points.

2002
Company outperforms the MSCI World 
Index by 19 percentage points.

2003
MSCI World Index outperformed by 
9 percentage points by the Company.

2004
Exceptional performance against 
the MSCI World Index continues, 
the Company this year ahead by 16 
percentage points.

2005
The Company’s NAV exceeds the 
MSCI World Index for a seventh
consecutive year, by 26 percentage 
points on a total return basis. 

2006
NAV per Share and Share price reach 
all-time highs of 471.6p and 502.5p
respectively.  The Company’s positive
performance continues, 5.6 percentage
points above the MSCI World Index on 
a total return basis.

Right: The Certificate of

Incorporation for the

Company dated 1889
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Historical Record

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Group net Basic net
Year ended revenue return Earnings Dividend Net assets asset value
30 September £’000 per Share (p) per Share (p) £’000 † per Share (p) †

1997 3,496 1.85 1.07 256,489 135.45
1998 3,542 1.87 1.11 220,352 116.37
1999 2,038 1.08 1.13 298,401 159.53
2000 3,882 2.15 1.30 356,337 202.11
2001 5,942 3.37 1.90* 325,970 186.18
2002 3,868 2.29 1.90* 277,419 173.30
2003 2,726 1.70 1.55  348,326 217.59
2004 3,651 2.28 1.70  429,474 268.28
2005 6,614 4.13 3.60*  618,739 386.51
2006 8,520 5.32 5.00* 701,291 438.08

The Company’s Net Asset Value relative to the Datastream Global Growth Investment Trust Index and
the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index (£ adjusted total return)

Net asset value               Morgan Stanley Capital International Index (£ adjusted)               Datastream Global Growth Investment Trust Index

Sources: Fundamental Data (2006) www.funddata.com, Bloomberg, Thomson Financial Datastream
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* Including a special dividend of 0.5p, 0.4p, 1.4p and 1.0p per Share in 2001, 2002, 2005 and 2006 respectively.

† The figures for 2006 have been calculated in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the figures for 2005 and 2004 have been restated in
accordance with IFRS (see notes 21 and 22a on pages 48–51). The figures for earlier years have not been restated.
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Investment Manager

Asset Value Investors Limited

Asset Value Investors Limited (“AVI”), the Company’s investment manager,
specialises in quoted ‘undervalued asset’ securities.  The company manages, in
addition to British Empire Securities and General Trust, The European Asset Value
Fund (SICAV), CF Asset Value Investors Global Fund (OEIC), AVI Value Fund
(LLC) and other managed accounts.  Funds under management have grown from £6m
in 1985 to above £1.5bn today.

AVI aims to deliver superior returns while minimising risks and specialises in securities
that for a number of reasons may be selling on anomalous valuations.

Favoured investments:
• are not heavily promoted and therefore are not well known;
• sell on wide discounts to estimated asset value; and
• own quality assets that are expected to appreciate.

AVI has long experience in the undervalued assets arena, particularly in:
• the closed-end fund sector;
• property companies; and
• the European investment holding company sector.

Over the long term, each of AVI’s funds has significantly outperformed its respective
benchmark index.

1st place - Five Years UK Investment Trusts Global Growth Sector out of 27 

AITC
Best Annual Report in its category 2003.

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

John Pennink
is a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA), Chief
Executive Officer of 
Asset Value Investors
and the Fund Manager
responsible for 
the British Empire 
Securities and General
Trust portfolio
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Investment Manager’s Review

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

During the year, British Empire’s NAV rose 14.3% and the share price also rose 14.3%
on a total return basis.  This compares with a return of 12.1% on the Datastream
Global Growth Investment Trust Index and 8.7% on the MSCI World Index on a total
return basis.

The returns on the portfolio were in solid positive territory this year and ahead of our
benchmark index, a good result following three years of exceptionally strong
performance.  We wrote in last year’s report that valuations in the markets were
beginning to get stretched and we raised some liquidity as a hedge against market
weakness.  As it has turned out, markets continued to rise and at the date of this report
many equity markets are approaching all-time highs.  Our concerns on valuations have,
therefore, not eased and we find ourselves finishing the year with an increased liquidity
position of £160m or 21.8% of gross assets.

The weighted average discount on your portfolio now stands at 13%.  This is at the
narrower end of a range of 10% to 26% observed over the past 5 years.  All things being
equal, the state of discounts in the market implies to us that there is less ‘margin of
safety’ available from holding such investments and that there is also less scope for adding
value through the elimination or narrowing of discounts.  Improved corporate
governance and increasing shareholder activism are plausible reasons to believe that
some narrowing of discounts over the past few years is justified.  However, we prefer to
be somewhat cautious and assume that most markets revert to the mean over time and
that discounts may widen should the investment environment become more challenging.

Forth Ports
operates ports on the
Leith estuary as well as
Dundee and Tilbury.  
It also has large land
holdings in Leith which 
it is planning to
redevelop for residential
and commercial use
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Investment Manager’s Review continued

Reasonable price/earnings ratios (PERs) are cited by bullish observers as being
supportive of equity markets.  In order to form an opinion on whether PERs are low
or high one has to understand where we are in the economic cycle.  We have had
several very strong years of economic growth driven by abnormally low interest rates.
Consumers have been encouraged to take on high debt burdens, in effect borrowing
growth from the future.  Meanwhile globalisation has kept wage growth in check and
corporate profit margins, as a result, are at historically high levels.  Furthermore,
cyclical stocks now make up a large percentage of the indices and are trading at low
multiples, making the markets as a whole look cheaper.  An economic slowdown, if it
comes, could severely undermine the earnings of many cyclical stocks and make the
markets much more expensive than they appear today.  So, PER based valuations may
not be much help if economies slow next year.

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

EMI Group
is the world's largest
independent music
recording and publishing
company.  It owns 
the rights to over one
million songs, the largest
catalogue in the world.
EMI's record labels
include Blue Note, 
EMI, Parlophone, Virgin, 
and Capitol Records
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We have profited very much over the past 4 years from being invested in the type of
stock that has benefited from the reflationary stimulus provided by central banks.
Mining and energy stocks, emerging markets, property-related shares and small
capitalisation stocks have all performed well in recent years.  Low interest rates have
also encouraged corporate activity and leveraged buyouts.  We are now taking some of
these cyclical bets off the table in anticipation of slower economic growth on the
horizon.  Where we can find solid defensive stocks at reasonable valuations, we may
buy them.  If we cannot, we are prepared to hold liquidity for some period of time.

The markets seem to be pricing in a continuation of a ‘Goldilocks scenario’, in which
economic activity is neither too hot nor too cold but just right to keep profits growing
while allowing inflation and interest rates to remain under control.  While this outcome
is possible, it is also unusual and should not be assumed as a base case.  We have always
sought to preserve capital and consider the downside as well as the upside in any
investment opportunity.  Our impression of the investment environment currently
leads us to take a cautious stance, including a good measure of liquidity. So, we are
pleased to have more than kept pace with the markets this year but are perhaps most
satisfied about having done so while taking less risk than the markets.    

Portfolio Review

The largest contributors to our +14.3% NAV (total return) performance during the
year were Mitsubishi Estates +1.3%, Paladin Resources +1.0%, PD Ports +0.8%,
Forth Ports +0.7%, Deutsche Wohnen +0.7%, Investor AB ‘A’ +0.7%, Kinross Gold
+0.6%, Vietnam Enterprise +0.6%, Birch Mountain +0.6% and Boskalis
Westminster +0.5%.

The largest detractor from performance was Fording Canadian Coal -0.7%.

Investment Holding Companies 28.8%

The weighted average discount to NAV on our investment holding companies was
23.6%.  This is wider than last year as we have rotated the portfolio towards companies
offering wider discount opportunities.

Sofina
Sofina is a Belgian holding company and is the investment vehicle of the Boël family.
The family control the company via two listed companies and a web of private
companies, giving them a stake in Sofina of around 50%.  Sofina’s investment portfolio
is approximately 3.5bn EUR in size and is invested primarily in large listed companies
in Belgium and France including Richemont, Suez, Danone, Colruyt and Total.  The
company trades at a wide discount to NAV of approximately 27%.  We believe there

Deutsche Wohnen
owns over 20,000
residential units 
in Germany
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Investment Manager’s Review continued

is potential for the discount to narrow if the company were to consider share buybacks
and a simplification of the ownership structure.

Hutchison Whampoa
Hutchison is Hong Kong’s largest conglomerate and forms part of the Cheung Kong
Group (Li Ka Shing’s business empire). It is engaged in 5 core business divisions: property,
ports, retail and manufacturing, energy and infrastructure, and telecoms.  Trading on a
discount to NAV of approximately 26%, the market is not attributing any value to its ‘3G’
telecom business.  The reason for this is that this business continues to invest in its
infrastructure and is cash flow negative.  The delay of the sale of the 3G business in Italy
also damaged sentiment towards the stock.  In the meantime however, the other divisions
continue to progress.  Hutchison is a global leader in ports, it has a high quality property
portfolio in Hong Kong and the performance of Husky Energy continues to be strong.  

Paris Orléans
The holding company of the French branch of the Rothschild family has had a good
year as the investment bank has benefited from a very strong M&A environment.  The
bank is currently experiencing high levels of demand for its advisory services and this
is reflected in higher revenues and profits for the group. At the same time, the direct
investment division of the holding company has made some disposals and continues to
advance its property development projects, most notably in Lodz, Poland.

Investor AB ‘A’
The holding company of the Swedish Wallenberg family has seen its discount to NAV
narrow from approximately 27% a year ago to 21% currently.  The wider than average
discount 12 months ago was probably caused by concern over its 3G investment in
Scandinavia.  Sentiment towards the company has improved with greater disclosure
from management about this business and its other private equity investments, as well
as a greater level of corporate activity within the group. The company was involved in
the acquisition of Gambro and also has a large stake in Scania which has been the
subject of bid activity from MAN.

Investment Trusts and Funds 27.2%

Discounts on our investment trust holdings average 8.3%.  From these levels our focus
is on accessing desired asset classes and good managers at a discount rather than
seeking to gain from discount narrowing in poorly performing trusts.

Edinburgh Dragon
We bought into this trust to access the expertise of Aberdeen’s respected Asian team
on a discount wider than was available on Aberdeen New Dawn.  The discount on
Dragon is currently 7.5% vs. 1.5% for New Dawn, despite better liquidity and slightly
better performance for Dragon over the past year. 

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Jardine Strategic
Holdings
Jardine Motors Group 
(above) is engaged in
the distribution, sales
and servicing of motor
vehicles in Hong Kong,
Macau, Southern China
and the United Kingdom. 
In Hong Kong, the
Group’s Mercedes-Benz
franchise, Zung Fu, has
achieved the highest
market penetration in the
world for the brand.

Jardine also holds shares
in Mandarin Oriental
(opposite page), a 
listed international hotel
investment and
management group with
a portfolio of 31 deluxe
and first class hotels
worldwide, including ten
under development  
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Electra Private Equity
A relatively defensive investment in a company with 42% of assets currently in cash.
The invested portion of the portfolio is invested directly in private equity.  We judge
the portfolio to be conservatively valued relative to its peers and, based upon the past
record, some uplifts may be anticipated upon disposal of investments.

Law Debenture
Law Debenture is a global growth trust that appears to trade on a premium of 6%.
This is before accounting for the value of its trustee business which is not credited
with any value in the balance sheet.  The trustee business has been valued by a leading
broker recently at £73.2m which, if accurate, would place the shares on a wider than
average 12.4% discount.  

The Alliance Trust
The Alliance Trust completed the merger with its sister company Second Alliance
during the year.  As part of the transaction, the company took buyback powers for the
first time.  As yet, no shares have been bought back despite a wide 12.9% discount to
NAV at the date of this report.

Property-related 12.9%

A ‘savings glut’ globally has led to a search for steady yields and property has been
amongst the main beneficiaries.  Many listed property companies have been driven to
premiums to NAV and are no longer attractive to us.  Hidden property plays, such as
Forth Ports, or laggard markets, such as Germany and Japan, may still offer some value.

Forth Ports
Forth is now the last remaining UK listed ports company following the acquisitions of
Mersey Docks, PD Ports, AB Ports and Simon Group.  The group owns a large land
bank in the Leith area of Edinburgh and is working on a master plan for its
regeneration and development over the next 20 years or so.  Financial investors have
been attracted to ports businesses by the relatively secure cash flows they provide while
at the same time the redevelopment of redundant port land into more valuable real
estate assets can provide upside.  The demand from these buyers for ports companies
has pushed up valuations in the sector and Forth trades at a discount to the value
implied by recent corporate activity in the sector.

Deutsche Wohnen
This residential property investor has a portfolio of approximately 22,000 units in
Germany and was paying a dividend of around 6% when we started investing in it.  A
weak economic environment in the country has meant that property values had not
increased to the same extent as other European markets and absolute values were
consequently low.  International investors were attracted to the sector for this reason
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Investment Manager’s Review continued

and there has been a lot of activity as large portfolios are sold by local authorities and
industrial owners. Prices have recently risen and yields have fallen.

Nippon Residential
Nippon Residential is a Japanese Real Estate Investment Trust (JREIT) specialising in
residential property.  It has a portfolio of 106 buildings, the vast majority of which are
in the Greater Tokyo area.  The company currently yields approx 4.5% and we believe
it trades at a small discount to its NAV.

NTT Urban
NTT Urban is a Japanese property investor and developer with a focus on Grade A
commercial buildings in Central Tokyo and residential condominium development.
The company currently trades at a discount of c30% to our estimate of its NAV, in
contrast to some of its peers which trade on a premium to NAV.

Commodity/Resources 5.4%

Our weighting in this area has reduced from 10.8% last year to 5.4%.  Although in
the long term the growth rates of China and India and the rising cost of production
are supportive of most commodity prices, we should not forget that these are highly
cyclical markets.  The fact that we have just witnessed one of the great commodity
rallies and are heading into a period of slower economic growth should prompt
some caution.

Addax Petroleum
An international oil E&P company with a focus on offshore West Africa.  The company
has strong growth in its production and reserves at a time when oil majors are
struggling to maintain their position.  The company has recently acquired Pan-Ocean
which expands its reach into Gabon.   

Liquidity 21.8%

Liquidity stood at 21.8% of gross assets at the end of the year.

Other 3.9%

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Net Asset Value Total Returns: % Change

Since 30/06/85 10 years 5 years 3years 1 year

British Empire 1648.6 280.9 142.8 103.7 14.3

AIC Global Growth 808.0 125.6 66.5 68.9 13.5

MSCI World (£) 615.2 75.8 29.8 43.5 8.7

Tokyu Corporation
owns and operates 
a passenger rail 
service in Tokyo.  
In addition, the
company owns real
estate assets including
department stores,
offices and hotels

Source: AIC, Fundamental Data and Datastream
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Paris Orléans
The planned
redevelopment of the
Beaugrenelle Shopping
Centre in Paris’ 15th
arrondissement is an
example of Paris 
Orléans’ joint venture
real estate activities

Geographical Profile

Total assets less current liabilities of £733m were distributed (on a look-through basis)
as follows: Continental Europe 19.9%, UK 24.2%, Asia Pacific 12.9%, Japan 14.5%,
Canada 4.6%, EMEA 2.1% and Liquidity of 21.8%.

Outlook

The economy in the US appears to be headed for a slowdown next year.  This will
affect the rest of the world as the US consumer has driven demand growth in the last
few years.  So far, equity markets have hailed the impending slowdown as a positive
development with the prospect of higher interest rates receding and commodity prices
beginning to weaken.  It is thought that PER multiples could expand if a ‘soft-landing’
is achieved.  Slowing growth, however, may also de-rail earnings which are historically
high as a percentage of GDP.  With markets near all-time highs and earnings
vulnerable, we are concerned that the negatives from slowing economic growth may
outweigh the positives of lower commodity prices and interest rates.  We have chosen
to take a more defensive stance towards the markets but we continue to watch for
opportunities to make new investments at attractive levels. 

John Pennink

Asset Value Investors Limited
13 November 2006
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Investment Portfolio As at 30 September 2006

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

% of
total assets 

Nature % Cost Valuation less current
Company of business of class £'000 £'000 liabilities

Investor AB 'A' Investment Holding Company 0.7 16,445 23,069 3.15

The Alliance Trust Investment Company 0.9 21,483 21,703 2.96

Jardine Strategic Holdings Investment Holding Company 0.3 6,573 18,165 2.48

Tokyu Corp Transport Company 0.4 16,648 17,393 2.38

Sofina Investment Holding Company 0.9 14,023 16,489 2.25

Electra Private Equity Investment Company 2.8 15,115 15,544 2.12

Hutchison Whampoa Investment Holding Company 0.1 17,059 14,525 1.98

NTT Urban Development Real Estate Company 0.5 14,815 14,228 1.94

Paris Orléans Investment Holding Company 3.1 7,820 14,062 1.92

Lundbergforetagen AB 'B' Investment Holding Company 1.3 9,613 14,022 1.92

Top ten investments 139,594 169,200 23.10

Heineken Holding Investment Holding Company 0.2 9,926 12,250 1.67

Groupe Bruxelles Lambert Investment Holding Company 0.1 13,244 12,163 1.66

Swire Pacific 'B' Investment Holding Company 0.4 10,172 11,888 1.62

Jardine Matheson Holdings Investment Holding Company 0.2 12,358 11,637 1.59

Herald Investment Trust Investment Company 3.6 10,746 11,197 1.53

Hang Lung Group Real Estate Company 0.6 7,982 10,997 1.50

Forth Ports Harbours & Property Company 1.2 7,946 10,824 1.48

Prospect Japan Fund Investment Company 9.8 5,797 10,759 1.47

Vivendi Media Company 0.1 10,000 10,749 1.47

Law Debenture Investment Company 2.8 7,325 10,424 1.42

Top twenty investments 235,090 282,088 38.51

JPMorgan Fleming American
Investment Trust Investment Company 3.6 9,977 10,102 1.38

Macarthur Coal Mining Company 2.8 11,801 9,675 1.32

Compagnie Nationale à Portefeuille Investment Holding Company 0.3 4,066 9,482 1.29

Hansa Trust 'A' Investment Company 7.1 2,270 9,048 1.24

Nippon Residential Investment Real Estate Company 1.7 8,945 8,995 1.23

BIP Investment Partners Investment Holding Company 3.7 4,794 8,914 1.22

EMI Group Media Company 0.4 8,078 8,511 1.16

Monks Investment Trust Investment Company 1.1 7,732 8,432 1.15

August Equity Trust Investment Company 11.0 4,360 8,370 1.14

Edinburgh Dragon Trust Investment Company 2.8 5,149 8,143 1.11

Top thirty investments 302,262 371,760 50.75
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% of
total assets 

Nature % Cost Valuation less current 
Company of business of class £'000 £'000 liabilities

JP Morgan Fleming Japanese
Smaller Companies Investment Company 7.3 5,337 7,842 1.07

Wheelock & Company Investment Holding Company 0.4 5,129 7,802 1.07

Danubius Hotel & Spa Hotel Company 6.3 5,915 7,773 1.06

Alarko Holding Investment Holding Company 3.1 8,650 7,644 1.04

Jazz Air Income Fund Income Trust 6.7 8,192 7,532 1.03

Daidoh Textile & Property Company 2.6 5,385 7,472 1.02

Katakura Industries Textile & Property Company 2.6 6,718 7,102 0.97

Deutsche Wohnen Real Estate Company 1.2 5,113 7,061 0.96

Addax Petroleum Oil & Gas Company 0.4 7,000 7,007 0.96

Impax Environmental Markets Investment Company 5.1 4,923 6,872 0.94

Top forty investments 364,624 445,867 60.87

JPMorgan Fleming Japanese
Investment Trust Investment Company 1.5 5,124 6,854 0.94

Ackermans & van Haaren Investment Holding Company 0.5 2,489 6,834 0.93

Polar Capital Technology Trust Investment Company 2.2 6,354 6,812 0.93

Finsbury Worldwide 
Pharmaceutical Trust Investment Company 2.4 6,994 6,727 0.92

CF Morant Wright Japan 'B' Investment Company 1.3 5,292 6,456 0.88 

Synenco Energy Inc Class 'A' Oil & Gas Company 1.7 7,226 6,360 0.87

New India Investment Trust Investment Company 10.0 4,231 6,160 0.84

Fording Canadian Coal Trust Mining Company 0.3 4,984 5,759 0.79 

Prospect Residential 
Investment Corp Real Estate Company 4.3 6,954 5,667 0.77

RHJ International Investment Holding Company 0.7 7,487 5,592 0.76

Top fifty investments 421,759 509,088 69.50



% of
total assets 

Nature % Cost Valuation less current 
Company of business of class £'000 £'000 liabilities

Merrill Lynch British 
Smaller Companies Trust Investment Company 3.4 4,155 5,485 0.75

Pargesa Holding AG Bearer Investment Company 0.1 5,344 5,117 0.70

Advance UK Trust Investment Company 6.0 2,805 4,965 0.68

F&C Private Equity Trust 'B' Investment Company 4.1 4,169 4,700 0.64

Murchison Metals Mining Company 4.5 2,288 4,534 0.62

Vietnam Enterprise Investments Investment Company 2.4 1,743 4,208 0.57

Aberforth Smaller Companies Investment Company 0.6 2,876 4,144 0.57

Aichi Bank Financial Company 0.6 4,620 3,905 0.53

North American Oil Sands * Oil & Gas Company 0.7 3,607 3,673 0.50

Total value of 
investments over 0.5% 453,366 549,819 75.06

Other investments (20) # 16,213 23,161 3.16

Treasury 7.5% 07/12/2006 † UK Government Security - 63,513 63,277 8.64

Treasury 4.5% 07/03/2007 † UK Government Security - 59,919 59,886 8.18

Treasury 5% 07/03/2008 † UK Government Security - 22,016 22,031 3.01

US Treasury 3.875% 31/07/2007 † US Government Security - 13,262 12,999 1.77

Total investments 628,289 731,173 99.82

Net current assets 1,348 0.18

Total assets less current liabilities 732,521 100.00

* Unlisted investment.
# Includes 5 unlisted investments with a valuation of £509,000 and 3 warrant holdings with a valuation of £919,000.
† Fixed interest investments.
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The Company’s capital structure comprises Ordinary Shares and two

tranches of Debenture Stock. The Company also has outstanding Equities

Index Unsecured Loan Stock (‘Index Stock’).

Ordinary Shares 

At 30 September 2006 there were 160,080,089 (2005:160,080,089) Ordinary Shares of 10p each
in issue.

Income entitlement:
The profits of the Company (including accumulated revenue reserves) available for
distribution and resolved to be distributed shall be distributed by way of interim, final
and (where applicable) special dividends among the holders of Ordinary Shares,
subject to the payment of interest to the holders of Debenture Stock and Index Stock.

Capital entitlement:
After meeting the liabilities of the Company and the amounts due to Debenture and
Index Stockholders on a winding up, the surplus assets shall be paid to the holders of
Ordinary Shares and distributed among such holders rateably according to the
amounts paid up or credited as paid up on their shares.

Voting entitlement:
Each Ordinary Shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and, on a poll,
to one vote for every Share held.

Debenture Stock 

At 30 September 2006 there were two tranches of Debenture Stock: £8,514,940 (2005:
£8,514,940) 10 3/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 and £15,000,000 (2005: £15,000,000) 8 1/8

per cent Debenture Stock 2023.

Income entitlement:
The holders of Debenture Stock are entitled to interest paid half-yearly at the rate 
of 103/8 per cent and 81/8 per cent respectively, per annum.

Capital entitlement:
The Stockholders are entitled to repayment of principal and outstanding interest on
the redemption date or, if earlier, on the occurrence of an event of default. The
Debenture Stock is secured by a floating charge on all the assets of the Company. If
the Company is liquidated the Debenture Stock is redeemable by the Company, in the
case of the 103/8 per cent Debenture Stock at a premium based on its market price and
in the case of the 81/8 per cent Debenture Stock on the equivalent gilt yield. Had the
Company been liquidated on 30 September 2006 such premiums would have
amounted, in aggregate, to £7.4m.



Voting entitlement:
The holders of Debenture Stock have no right to attend or to vote at general meetings
of the Company.

Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 (“Index Stock”) 

At 30 September 2006 there were 2,837,000 units of Index Stock in issue (2005: 2,906,267).
During the year the Company purchased 69,267 units of Index Stock for cancellation.

Investment characteristics:
Units of Index Stock entitle the holders to an income return that matches that of the
FTSE All-Share Index (the ‘Index’) and, at maturity, a capital return that also matches
that of the Index. Neither return is fixed and each moves up or down with the United
Kingdom stock market.

Income entitlement:
Holders of the Index Stock receive interest paid quarterly. Interest is calculated by
reference to the yield on the Index having regard to the movement in the ex-dividend
adjustment factor during the relevant quarter as published in the Financial Times.  The
interest paid in the year to 30 September 2006 amounted to £93.29 per 1,000 units.

Capital entitlement:
The Company shall redeem the whole of the Index Stock on the tenth Stock Exchange
dealing day after 31 March 2013, barring any circumstances which may lead to an
earlier redemption, at its capital value.  The capital value means, in respect of one unit
of Index Stock, the higher of 10 per cent of its nominal amount of £1.74338 and the
Index number at the date of calculation divided by 1,000 expressed in pounds and
rounded up to five decimal places.  If the Index Stock is redeemed by the Company
early, payment will be effected at the capital value.

The capital value of the Index Stock as at 30 September 2006 amounted to £3.05044
per unit and the offer market price of the Index Stock as at 30 September 2006 was
£2.65 per unit.

Voting entitlement:
The holders of Index Stock have no right to attend or to vote at general meetings of
the Company.
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Iain Samuel Robertson CBE (left)

Status: Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Age: 60 Length of Service: 11 years, appointed 

Chairman on 19 December 2002
Experience: A Director of The Royal Bank of 

Scotland Group plc until May 2005 and John
Menzies plc and, Chairman of BT Scotland 
and Cairn Capital.  Formerly a Director of 
Selective Assets Trust plc which was 
acquired by the Company in 1995

Last re-elected to the Board: 
Up for re-election in 2006

Committee membership: Audit Committee,  
Management Engagement Committee 
(Chairman), Nomination Committee

Remuneration: £24,000 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: None
Shared Directorships with any other Trust 

Directors: None
Shareholding in Company: 25,000 Ordinary Shares

Peter Richard Allen (left)

Status: Independent Non-Executive Director
Age: 63 Length of Service: 4 yrs
Experience: Previously a Director of Lombard; 

Director and Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of Greenwich Capital; Finance 
Director of Corporate Banking and Financial 
Markets at The Royal Bank of Scotland

Last re-elected to the Board: 2005
Committee membership: Audit Committee 

(Chairman), Nomination Committee
Remuneration: £18,500 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: None
Shared Directorships with any other Trust 

Directors: None
Shareholding in Company: 5,000 Ordinary Shares

Attendance at meetings
Management

Name Board Audit Engagement
I Robertson 8 3 1
P Allen 8 3 n/a
S Bates 6 2 n/a
R Blomfield-Smith 8 3 1
P S S Macpherson 8 3 1
J May 7 n/a n/a

No. of meetings held 8 3 1

Rosamund Blomfield-Smith (right)

Status: Independent Non-Executive Director
Age: 57 Length of Service: 4yrs
Experience: A Non-executive Director of 

The Engineering Business and an 
independent Board member of the Wales 
Audit Office.  Governor of The University of 
the West of England and of Hartpury 
Agricultural College. Formerly Head of 
Corporate Finance at Arbuthnot Latham 
Limited and a Director of N M Rothschild 
and Sons, ING Barings and the National 
Rivers Authority.

Last re-elected to the Board: 2005
Committee membership: Audit Committee, 

Management Engagement Committee, 
Nomination Committee 

Remuneration: £16,000 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: None
Shared Directorships with any other Trust 

Directors: None
Shareholding in Company: 1,554 Ordinary sharesStephen Andrew Ralph Bates (left)

Status: Independent Non-Executive Director
Age: 49 Length of Service: 9 months 
Experience: Director of Zephyr Management, an

investment management business specialising
in emerging markets.  Non-executive 
Director of Baring Emerging Europe plc and 
Renaissance US Growth Investment Trust 
plc. Previously an Executive Director of 
JPMorgan Asset Management responsible 
for emerging markets investments.

Election to the Board: Up for election in 2006
Committee membership: Audit Committee
Remuneration: £16,000 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: None
Shareholding in Company: 13,000

Philip Strone Stewart Macpherson (right)

Status: Independent Non-Executive Director
Age: 58 Length of Service: 4yrs 
Experience: Deputy Chairman and Senior 

Independent Director at Close Brothers plc, 
Non-executive Director of AXA plc, Chairman 
of Tribal Group plc and JP Morgan Fleming 
Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc.  
Previously he had been a Director at Flemings 
and Executive Deputy Chairman of Misys plc.

Last re-elected to the Board: Up for re-election 
in 2006

Committee membership: Audit Committee, 
Management Engagement Committee, 
Nomination Committee 

Remuneration: £16,000 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: None
Shared Directorships with any other Trust 

Directors: None
Shareholding in Company: 40,000 Ordinary Shares

John Michael May (left)

Status: Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Age: 51 Length of Service: 3 yrs
Experience: A Director of Caledonia Investments

plc and, formerly an Executive Director of 
Hambros Bank Limited and Joint Managing 
Director of Hambro Countrywide plc

Last re-elected to the Board: 2004
Committee membership: Nomination Committee
Remuneration: £16,000 pa
Employment by the Manager: None
Other connections with the Trust or Manager: 

Director of Caledonia Investments, 
a substantial shareholder

Shared Directorships with any other Trust
Directors: None
Shareholding in Company: Nil
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Report of the Directors

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2006.

Business Review
The objective of the Company is to achieve capital growth through a focused portfolio of investments, particularly in
companies whose share prices stand at a discount to estimated underlying net asset value.  Reviews of the Company’s NAV
performance in comparison to the benchmark (the Company’s key performance indicator) during the year are contained
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the Investment Manager’s Review on pages 9 to 15.  The principal risks
facing the business and how these are managed are set out in note 19 in the Notes to the Accounts on pages 44 to 47.

Results and Dividends 
The profit of the Group for the year was £88,635,000 of which £8,520,000 is attributable to revenue (2005 as restated:
£192,307,000 of which £6,614,000 was attributable to revenue).  The profit for the year attributable to revenue has been
applied as follows:

Company Group
£’000 £’000

Revenue available for dividends 8,522 8,520

Interim dividend of 0.80p per Ordinary Share paid on 9 June 2006 (1,281) (1,281)

Recommended final dividend payable on 5 January 2007 to Shareholders on the Register
as at 15 December 2006 (ex dividend 13 December 2006):
- Final dividend of 3.20p per Ordinary share (5,122) (5,122)
- Special dividend of 1.00p per Ordinary share (1,601) (1,601)

(8,004) (8,004)

Principal Activity and Status
The Company is registered as a Public Limited Company in terms of the Companies Act 1985. The Company is an
investment company under section 266 of the Companies Act 1985.

Status
The Company is an investment trust and a member of the Association of Investment Companies.

The Company has been approved as an investment trust company under section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes
Act 1988 for the year ended 30 September 2005. The Directors are of the opinion, under advice, that the Company has
conducted its affairs for the year ended 30 September 2006 so as to be able to obtain approval as an investment trust under
section 842 for that year.

The Company is a qualifying trust for the purposes of Personal Equity Plans and Individual Savings Accounts.

Subsidiary Companies
The Company owns one active dealing subsidiary, BEST Securities Limited. In the year to 30 September 2006, BEST
Securities Limited made a loss before taxation of £2,234 (2005: loss £1,123).   
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Directors
The present members of the Board are listed on page 21.

Mr SAR Bates, having been appointed to the Board since the last Annual General Meeting retires in accordance with
Article 71 of the Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible offers himself for election.  The Board considers
that Mr Bates has already made significant contributions to its deliberations and accordingly recommends that
Shareholders vote in favour of Mr Bates’ election.  A brief resumé of Mr Bates can be found on page 21.  Mr Bates was
selected using a third party search and selection firm engaged by the Nomination Committee immediately prior to the
commencement of the financial period.

In accordance with the requirements of the revised Combined Code Mr ISRobertson CBE, having been a Director of the
Company for more than 10 years, retires and offers himself for re-election.  The Board does not accept that length of
service necessarily affects the independence of a Director, as a long association with a Company and experience through
a number of investment cycles can be valuable to the Board in its deliberations.  The Board accordingly continues to deem
Mr Robertson to be independent, to have provided good leadership of the Board and contribution to its management
throughout the year and recommends that Shareholders vote in favour of his re-election.

Mr PSS Macpherson retires by rotation in accordance with Article 100(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association.
Having conducted a review of his performance during the year, the Board considers that he has provided full commitment
and contribution to the affairs of the Company throughout the year.  The Board accordingly recommends that
Shareholders vote in favour of his re-appointment.

The interests (all beneficial) of the current Directors and their connected persons in the securities of the Company as at
30 September 2006 are set out below:

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Loan Stock Loan Stock
30/9/06 1/10/05 30/9/06 1/10/05

IS Robertson 25,000 25,000 – –
PR Allen 5,000 5,000 – –
SAR Bates 13,000 n/a – n/a
R Blomfield-Smith 1,554 - – –
PSS Macpherson 40,000 40,000 – –
JM May - - – –

There have been no changes to the interests disclosed above between the year end and date of this report.

Mr JM May is a Director of Caledonia Investments plc which owned at 1 November 2006 18.49 per cent of the Ordinary
Shares of the Company.

Save as aforesaid, no Director was a party to or had an interest in any contract or arrangement with the Company.
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Substantial Interests in Share Capital
At 1 November 2006 the following holdings representing more than 3 per cent of the Company’s issued share capital had
been reported to the Company:

Number of Percentage
Shares held Held

Caledonia Investments plc* 29,593,979 18.49
Funds managed by Brewin Dolphin Securities Ltd 9,734,637 6.08
Legal and General 5,725,252 3.58
Funds managed by ISIS Asset Management 5,021,113 3.14

* The Cayzer Trust Company Limited is deemed to be interested in a total of 29,593,979 Ordinary Shares (representing 18.49 per cent of the issued Ordinary Share capital) by
virtue of its interest in Caledonia Investments plc.

The Investment Manager
AVI is the Company’s appointed Investment Manager (“Manager”) and is engaged under the terms of a Management
Agreement, effective from 1 October 2003.  Throughout the year to 30 September 2006 the Manager operated in
accordance with the terms of the Management Agreement.  The Management Agreement was reviewed by the
Management Engagement Committee of the Company during the year under review and no amendments to its terms were
considered to be necessary.  The Management Agreement is terminable on a minimum of one year’s notice by either party.

The Manager is entitled to a base management fee of 0.55% of the net assets of the Company as at the end of the
financial period, increasing to 0.6% for any financial period in which the Company out-performs the benchmark or under-
performs by no more than 5%.  The first 0.3% of the base management fee is charged to revenue and the remainder of
the base management fee, together with any performance fee, is charged to capital.

A performance element may also be payable under which the Manager is paid 4% of any out-performance in the net asset
value per share on a total return basis over the benchmark (the Thomson Financial Datastream Global Growth Investment
Trust Index) at the year end, with a cap on aggregate fees of 1% per annum.  Any out-performance in excess of the cap or
under-performance in any year will be carried forward for use in the next three years’ fee calculations on a first-in first-out
basis.  Details of fees paid and payable can be found in note  3 in the Notes to the Accounts on page 37.

The Directors have reviewed the performance of the Manager and are satisfied that the continued appointment of the
Manager on the terms agreed is in the best interests of Shareholders and the Company.

Corporate Governance
The Terms of Reference for all Committees of the Board are available from the office of the Company Secretary.

The Board consists entirely of non-executive Directors all of whom, with the exception of Mr John May who represents
a major shareholder, are considered by the Board to be independent notwithstanding their length of service.  Arrangements
are in place to ensure that the level of corporate governance is appropriate to an investment trust and, taking account of
the matters referred to below, the Company has complied with the Revised Combined Code on Corporate Governance
(‘the Code’).  Section 1 of the Code has been complied with throughout the period covered by this Report.  The Board has
regard for the Association of Investment Companies’ code of corporate governance (as amended) for investment trusts and
adheres to its principles and recommendations except where otherwise disclosed.
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As all Directors are non-executive, the Company is not required to comply with the principles of the Code relating to
Director’s remuneration.  In addition the Board has elected not to designate a senior non-executive Director, as the Board
considers that each Director has different strengths and qualities on which they may provide leadership.

The Company has a defined list of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board of Directors.

The Management Agreement between the Company and AVI sets out the matters over which the Investment Manager has
authority and the limits above which Board approval must be sought.  In relation to the use of the Company’s voting rights
in respect of investee companies the Investment Manager, in the absence of explicit instruction from the Board, is
empowered to exercise discretion in the use of the Company’s voting rights in the best interests of the Company. 

As the Company has no employees and invests in diverse corporations and intermediate holding companies, it has no direct
impact on social or economic or environmental matters.  However, where the Board deems an issue to be of importance
or sensitivity it may, through the Investment Manager, use its voting rights and contact with senior executives of an
investee company to make its views known.

The Board normally meets eight times per year and receives full details of the Company’s income, assets, liabilities and
other relevant information in advance of meetings.  The Investment Manager and Company Secretary are in regular
contact with Directors on a less formal basis and individual Directors have direct access to the Company Secretary.
Directors may seek independent professional advice on any matter that concerns them, at the expense of the Company, in
the furtherance of their duties.

The Management Engagement Committee, comprises three independent Directors, Mr I S Robertson (Chairman), Mrs R
Blomfield-Smith and Mr P S S Macpherson.  It reviews both the terms of the Management Agreement to ensure they are
appropriate for the Company and compliant with good industry practice and the remuneration of the Investment Manager.
During the year the Management Engagement Committee also reviewed the services and performance of the Company’s
other third party service providers and found these to be satisfactory.  The Management Engagement Committee met once
during the year.

The Nomination Committee comprises the whole Board and convenes to consider the appointment of Directors in
accordance with its defined terms of reference.  Candidates for nomination may be sourced from outside of the Company
using third party search and selection services as well as potential candidates known to Directors through their extensive
knowledge of the industry.  The Nomination Committee did not meet during the year.  Newly appointed Directors receive
such tailored training and induction as they consider are suited to their needs. 

The Board considers that, in view of its non-executive nature, it is not appropriate for Directors to be appointed for a
specified term of not more than three years as recommended by the Code. The Articles of Association require that one
third of the Directors retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting.  The Board abides by the spirit of the Code by
ensuring that each Director stands for re-election at least once every three years.  The Board is not of the view that serving
as a Director for nine or more years automatically results in that Director losing his/her independence.  However, after
nine years of service a Director will be subject to annual re-election. 

The Audit Committee operates within clearly defined terms of reference, copies of which are available from the office of
the Company Secretary and are reviewed annually. The Committee comprises Mr PR Allen (Chairman), Mrs R
Blomfield-Smith, Mr PSS Macpherson, Mr IS Robertson and Mr SAR Bates.  All members of the Committee have recent
and relevant financial experience. 
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The Audit Committee’s main functions are:

• To review and monitor the internal financial control systems and risk management systems on which the Company
is reliant;

• To consider annually whether there is a need for the Company to have its own internal audit function;
• To monitor the integrity of the interim and annual financial statements of the Company by reviewing and challenging,

where necessary, the actions and judgements of the Investment Manager and Administrator;
• To meet with the external Auditors to review their proposed audit programme of work and their findings.  The Committee

also uses this as an opportunity to assess the effectiveness of the Audit process; 
• To make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the external

Auditors and to negotiate the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external Auditors on both audit and non-
audit work;

• To monitor and review annually the external Auditor’s independence, objectivity, effectiveness, resources and qualification. 

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Following publication of ‘Internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’ (the Turnbull guidance), the
Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Company. This process has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of this Annual Report
and Accounts and is regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the guidance. The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control.  In particular, it has reviewed and updated the process for identifying and
evaluating the significant risks affecting the Company and policies by which these risks are managed.  The Committee
confirms that the external auditor satisfied the tests of independence, objectivity, effectiveness, resources and qualification.
In assessing the independence of the auditor the Committee has particular regard for the extent and levels of fees paid in
respect of audit and non-audit work. 

The significant risks faced by the Company are:

• financial;
• operational;
• regulatory; and
• market.

The key components designed to provide effective internal control which the Company has in place are outlined below:

• The Investment Manager prepares forecasts and management accounts which allow the Board to assess the Company’s
activities and review its performance;

• The Board and Investment Manager have agreed clearly defined investment criteria, specified levels of authority and
exposure limits. Reports on these issues, including performance statistics and investment valuations, are regularly 
submitted to the Board. The Investment Manager’s evaluation procedure and financial analysis of the companies 
concerned include detailed appraisal and due diligence;

• As a matter of course the Investment Manager’s compliance department continually reviews the Investment 
Manager’s operations;

• Written agreements are in place which specifically define the roles and responsibilities of the Investment Manager and
other third party service providers;

• At its September and November meetings, the Audit Committee carries out assessments of internal controls for the
year by considering documentation from the Investment Manager and the Administrator, including their compliance
function and taking account of events during the year.  The results of the assessments are reported to the Board.
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The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function but, because of the compliance and internal control
systems in place at the Investment Manager and Administrator, it is satisfied that reliance can be placed on their systems
and procedures.  Also, as neither the Company nor the Group have any employees the Board does not feel that
‘whistleblowing’ procedures need to be put in place.

Internal control systems are designed to meet the Company’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and, by their nature, can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against mis-statement and loss.

Since the year end, evaluations of the performance of the Board as a whole, the Committees and individual Directors were
undertaken using structured questionnaires.  The evaluations are led by the Chairman who, after receiving analyses of the
results of the questionnaires, discusses the findings with each Director individually.  The performance of the Chairman is
assessed from discussion with the other members of the Board, led by Mr PSS Macpherson as the next most senior
Director to the Chairman.  The Board are satisfied from the results of the evaluation that the structure, mix of skills and
operation of the Board continue to be satisfactory and appropriate for the Company.

After making enquiries and bearing in mind the nature of the Company’s business and assets, the Directors consider that
the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

The Directors welcome the views of all Shareholders and place considerable importance on communications with
Shareholders.  Board representatives and the Investment Manager meet with the Company’s major Shareholders throughout
the year.  The Board recommends that Shareholders attend the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 14 December 2006
and use the opportunity to ask questions of their Board and the Investment Manager either formally at the Meeting or
informally at the  buffet luncheon afterwards.  At the Annual General Meeting the Investment Manager will make a brief
presentation to Shareholders covering the investment performance and strategy of the Company.  

Owing to the short period of time between the Company’s financial year end, the annual report and accounts becoming
available and the calendar year end, the Company is unable to comply with the recommendation in the Code that the accounts
be sent out at least 20 working days prior to the Annual General Meeting.  

Creditor Payment Policy
The Company’s payment policy is to settle investment transactions in accordance with market practice and to ensure settlement
of supplier invoices in accordance with stated terms. The Company did not have any trade creditors at the year end.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and regulations.  Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group
and Company financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law they are required to prepare Group financial
statements in accordance with those International Financial Reporting Standards which have been adopted by the EU
(“IFRS”) and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements on the same basis.
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

The Group and Company financial statements are required by law and IFRS to present fairly the financial position of the
Group and Company and the financial performance and cash-flows of the Group and Company for the relevant period.
The Companies Act 1985 (“Act”) provides in relation to such financial statements that, references in the relevant part of
that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.  

In preparing the Group and Company financial statements the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether the financial statements have been prepared in compliance with IFRS, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained therein; 
• present information, including accounting policies, in a manner which provides relevant, reliable, comparable and

understandable information; 
• provide additional disclosures where compliance with the specific requirements of IFRS are considered to be insufficient

to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, events and conditions on the financial position and
performance; and

• prepare financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Company
will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Act and Article 4 of International Accounting Standards.  The Directors also have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably available to them, and for ensuring their third party service providers take similar
reasonable steps, to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent/detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable laws and regulations the Directors are responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement which comply with those laws and regulations.

Auditor Information
Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken in order to:

• make himself/herself aware of any information relevant to the audit;
• establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that information; and
• ensure that, as far as the Director is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of which the Group and

Company’s auditors are not aware.

Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a Resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-appoint them as auditor and authorise the Directors to
determine the auditor’s remuneration for the ensuing year.
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Special Business at the Annual General Meeting 

Resolution 9 - Authority to allot Shares
Before a Company can allot shares it must have authority under Section 80 Companies Act 1985 (“Act”) which may be
sought for periods up to 5 years.  Under Resolution 9 the Company seeks to renew the general and unconditional authority
already granted to it to allot up to £2,400,000 in nominal value of Ordinary Shares of 10p each, representing
approximately 15 per cent of the issued Ordinary Share capital.  The Directors would only exercise this authority if they
considered it to be in the best interests of the Company generally.

Resolution 10 - Authority to issue Shares outside of pre-emption rights
The Directors are seeking to renew their limited authority to allot Shares other than on a pre-emptive basis.  This authority
will be limited to allotments of new Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of £800,400 being approximately
5 per cent of the Ordinary Share capital currently in issue and to the transfer or sale of Shares held in treasury.  The
Directors would only exercise this authority if they believed it to be advantageous to the Company’s Shareholders to do
so and  would not result in a diminution of net asset value per Share.

Resolution 11 - Share Buy-Back Facility
This Resolution is to renew the authority granted to the Director’s each year to make market purchases of up to 23,996,005
Ordinary Shares (in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and Listing Rules) representing approximately
14.99 per cent of the issued Ordinary Share capital at the date of this Report.  The minimum price which may be paid
shall be 10p per Ordinary Share and the maximum shall be 5 per cent above the average of the mid-market values for
Ordinary Shares as derived from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding purchase.  Under the Companies Act (Acquisition of Own Shares)(Treasury Shares) Regulations
2003, Shares bought back up to a ceiling (“Ceiling”) of 10 per cent of the Ordinary Share capital then in issue, may be
held in treasury for cancellation or re-sale at a future date rather than being cancelled upon purchase.  Any Ordinary Shares
bought back which exceed the Ceiling are automatically cancelled.  The Directors would not buy back shares at a price
below the prevailing net asset value at the date of purchase nor exercise the authority granted under this Resolution unless
they considered it to be in the best interests of Shareholders or would result in an increase in net asset value per Share.
Treasury shares would not be re-sold at a price below the net asset value per Share for the day preceding such sale.  

By Order of the Board,

For and on behalf of 

Phoenix Administration Services Limited

Secretary

Registered Office:

Bennet House

54 St James’s Street 

London

13 November 2006



2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital

return return Total return return Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

Investment income 2 16,626 - 16,626 13,110 - 13,110

Gains on investments held at fair value 8 - 85,053 85,053 - 188,196 188,196

Losses on Index Stock - (7) (7) - (764) (764)

Gains on forward sales of Euro - - - - 1,221 1,221

Realised exchange losses - (2,343) (2,343) - (610) (610)

16,626 82,703 99,329 13,110 188,043 201,153

Expenses

Investment  management fee 
(including irrecoverable VAT) 3 (2,006) (3,685) (5,691) (1,404) (3,265) (4,669)

Other expenses
(including irrecoverable VAT) 3 (1,221) - (1,221) (1,147) - (1,147)

Profits before finance costs and tax 13,399 79,018 92,417 10,559 184,778 195,337

Finance costs 4 (2,391) (8) (2,399) (2,361) (7) (2,368)

Profit before tax 11,008 79,010 90,018 8,198 184,771 192,969

Taxation  5 (2,488) 1,105 (1,383) (1,584) 922 (662)

Profit for the period 8,520 80,115 88,635 6,614 185,693 192,307

Earnings per ordinary share 
Basic - ordinary shares 7 5.32p 50.05p 55.37p 4.13p 116.00p 120.13p

The total column of this statement represents the Group’s Income Statement, prepared in accordance with IFRS.  The revenue return and capital return columns are supplementary
to this and are prepared under the guidance published by the Association of Investment Companies.

All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

All income is attributable to the equity holders of British Empire Securities and General Trust plc.  There are no minority interests.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Ordinary Capital Capital Capital
share redemption Share reserve reserve Merger Revenue

capital reserve premium realised unrealised reserve reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Group

For the year to 30 September 2005
Restated (see note 22a)

Balance at 30 September 2004 16,008 2,927 28,078 246,363 82,214 41,406 12,478 429,474

Profit for the period - - - 105,491 80,202 - 6,614 192,307

Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - - (3,042) (3,042)

Balance as at 30 September 2005 16,008 2,927 28,078 351,854 162,416 41,406 16,050 618,739

For the year to 30 September 2006

Balance at 30 September 2005 16,008 2,927 28,078 351,854 162,416 41,406 16,050 618,739

Profit for the period - - - 144,369 (64,254) - 8,520 88,635

Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - - (3,842) (3,842)

Special dividend paid - - - - - - (2,241) (2,241)

Balance as at 30 September 2006 16,008 2,927 28,078 496,223 98,162 41,406 18,487 701,291

Company

For the year to 30 September 2005
Restated (see note 22a)

Balance at 30 September 2004 16,008 2,927 28,078 246,363 83,999 41,406 10,693 429,474

Profit for the period - - - 105,491 80,201 - 6,615 192,307

Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - - (3,042) (3,042)

Balance as at 30 September 2005 16,008 2,927 28,078 351,854 164,200 41,406 14,266 618,739

For the year to 30 September 2006

Balance at 30 September 2005 16,008 2,927 28,078 351,854 164,200 41,406 14,266 618,739

Profit for the period - - - 144,369 (64,256) - 8,522 88,635

Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - - (3,842) (3,842)

Special dividend paid - - - - - - (2,241) (2,241)

Balance as at 30 September 2006 16,008 2,927 28,078 496,223 99,944 41,406 16,705 701,291

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets as at 30 September 2006

Company Group
Restated Restated

(see note 22a) (see note 22a)
2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 8 733,205  651,258  731,173  649,224 

Current assets
Investments 10 - - 5 5
Sales for future settlement 1,738 2,426 1,738 2,426 
Other receivables 11 3,586 2,893 3,586 2,893 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,242 2,404 9,245 2,410 

14,566 7,723 14,574 7,734

Total assets 747,771 658,981 745,747 656,958

Current liabilities
Purchases for future settlement (9,423) (3,754) (9,423) (3,754)
Other payables 12 (5,827) (5,255) (3,803) (3,232)

(15,250) (9,009) (13,226) (6,986)

Total assets less current liabilities 732,521 649,972  732,521 649,972 

Non-current liabilities
103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 13 (8,515) (8,515) (8,515) (8,515)
81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 13 (14,879) (14,871) (14,879) (14,871)
Index Stock 13 (7,518) (7,702) (7,518) (7,702)
Provision for deferred tax 14 (318) (145) (318) (145)

Net assets 701,291 618,739 701,291 618,739

Equity attributable to equity Shareholders
Ordinary share capital 15 16,008 16,008 16,008 16,008 
Capital redemption reserve 16 2,927 2,927 2,927 2,927 
Share premium 16 28,078 28,078 28,078 28,078
Capital reserve realised 16 496,223 351,854 496,223 351,854
Capital reserve unrealised 16 99,944 164,200 98,162 162,416 
Merger reserve 16 41,406 41,406 41,406 41,406
Revenue reserve 16 16,705 14,266 18,487 16,050 

Total equity 17 701,291 618,739 701,291 618,739

Net asset value per ordinary share - basic 17 438.08p 386.51p  438.08p 386.51p 

Number of shares in issue 160,080,089 160,080,089 160,080,089 160,080,089

The financial statements on pages 30 to 52 were approved by the Board of Directors and were authorised for issue on 13 November 2006 and were signed
on its behalf by:

IS Robertson Chairman PSS Macpherson Director
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company Group
Restated Restated

(see note 22c) (see note 22c)
2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities (see below) 15,455   6,348   15,452   6,352  

Financing activities
Dividends paid (6,083) (3,042) (6,083) (3,042)
Buyback of Equity Index Stock (191) (348) (191) (348) 

Cash outflow from financing activities (6,274) (3,390) (6,274) (3,390) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,181  2,958  9,178  2,962  

Exchange movements (2,343) (610) (2,343) (610) 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 6,838 2,348  6,835 2,352 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,404 56 2,410 58

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 9,242  2,404   9,245  2,410  

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 90,018 192,969 90,018 192,969 
Losses on Index Stock held at fair value 7 764 7 764 
Profits on forward currency contracts - (1,221) - (1,221)
Losses on exchange movements 2,343 610 2,343 610
Gains on investments held at fair value through profit or loss (85,051) (188,196) (85,053) (188,196)
Purchases of investments (553,088) (420,652) (553,088) (420,652)
Sales of investments 562,549 421,682   562,549 421,682 
Net proceeds from forward currency contracts - 1,221 - 1,221 
Increase in other receivables (590) (1,027) (590) (1,028)
Increase in creditors 13 694 12 694 
Taxation (754) (503) (754) (498)
Amortisation of Debenture issue expenses 8 7 8 7
Decrease in value on investments - current assets - - 1 -
Purchase of investments - current assets - - (1) -

Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,455  6,348 15,452  6,352  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated and Company 
Cash Flow Statements for the year ended 30 September 2006
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting policies
The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS").  These comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), together with
interpretations of the International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee ("IASC") that remain in effect, to the extent that IFRS have been adopted by the European Union.

During the year the IASB issued IFRIC10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment Standard (effective 1 November 2006) and
IFRS7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective 1 January 2007).  The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these
Standards will have a material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.

The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS are given in notes 21 and 22 on pages 48 to 52.

The functional currency of the Group is pounds sterling because this is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates.  The financial statements are also presented in pounds sterling.

(a) Basis of preparation
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.  Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended
Practice ("the SORP") for investment trusts issued by the Association of Investment Companies ("the AIC") in January 2003 (revised
in December 2005) is consistent with the requirements of IFRS, the directors have sought to prepare the financial statements on a basis
compliant with the recommendations of the SORP.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiary) made up to 30 September each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

(c) Presentation of Income Statement
In order to reflect better the activities of an investment trust company and in accordance with guidance issued by the AIC,
supplementary information which analyses the Income Statement between items of a revenue and capital nature has been presented
alongside the Income Statement.  In accordance with the Company's status as a UK investment company under section 266 of the
Companies Act 1985, net capital returns may not be distributed by way of dividend.  Additionally, the net revenue is the measure the
directors believe appropriate in assessing the Company's compliance with certain requirements set out in section 842 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988.

(d) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are recognised as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis.  Where an ex-dividend date is not
available, dividends received on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year.  Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount.  Interest receivable from cash and short term
deposits is accrued to the end of the year.

(e) Expenses
All expenses and interest payable are accounted for on an accruals basis.  Expenses have been treated as revenue except as follows:

• The base management fee of 0.30% has been treated as revenue.  The remainder of the base management fee at the rate of 0.25%
(or 0.30% if the Company out-performs its benchmark index or under-performs by no more than 5%) together with the performance
element of the management fee are charged to capital;

• expenses which are incidental to the purchase or sale of an investment are recognised within the Income Statement as a capital item;
• expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of investments can be

demonstrated.

(f) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes



items that are never taxable or deductible.  The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that were enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

In line with the recommendations of the SORP, the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented against capital
returns in the supplementary information in the Income Statement is the "marginal basis".  Under this basis, if taxable income is capable
of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the Income Statement, then no tax relief is transferred
to the capital return column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with within equity.

Investment trusts which have approval as such under section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are not liable for
taxation on capital gains.

(g) Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
When  a purchase or sale is made under a contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant market,
the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

In accordance with IFRS recognition and measurement principles all the Group's investments are classified as investments designated
at fair value through profit or loss and are described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

All investments are designated as held at fair value upon initial recognition and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value,
which is either the bid price or the last traded price, depending on the convention of the exchange on which the investment is quoted. 

Fair values for unquoted investments, or investments for which the market is inactive, are established by using various valuation
techniques. These may include recent arm's length market transactions, the current fair value of another instrument which is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.  Where there is a valuation technique commonly used
by market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions, that technique is utilised.  Where no reliable fair value can be estimated for such instruments,
they are carried at cost subject to any provision for impairment.

Investments held by the subsidiary undertaking are classified as "held for trading" and are valued at fair value in accordance with the
policies above for listed and unlisted holdings.  Profits or losses on investments "held for trading" are taken to revenue.

Foreign exchange gains and losses for fair value through profit or loss investments are included within the changes in its fair value.

(h) Movements in fair value
Changes in fair value of not held for trading investments are recognised in the Income Statement as a capital item.  On disposal, realised
gains and losses are also recognised in the Income Statement as capital items.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and at bank and short-term deposits.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(j) Dividends payable
Interim and final dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid.

(k) Foreign currency translation
Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.  At each
balance sheet date, monetary items that are fair valued and are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date.  Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the Income Statement.
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Notes to the Accounts continued

(l) Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013
In accordance with the IFRS recognition and measurement principles the Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 is classified as a
financial liability designated at fair value through profit or loss and is valued at the closing offer price.  Changes in its fair value are
recognised in the Income Statement as a capital item.  On cancellation, realised gains and losses are also recognised through the Income
Statement as capital items.  Prior to the adoption of IFRS the capital value was determined by reference to the level of the FTSE All-
Share Index at the close of business.  Interest paid on the Index Stock is charged to the Income Statement as a revenue item.

(m) Finance costs
Finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised through the Income Statement as revenue items.  This does not
comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies, which would require
the finance costs of the Debenture Stocks and the Index Stock to be allocated between revenue and capital in the same proportions as
the Management Fee.  However, the Directors consider that the treatment adopted, which is consistent with previous years, is the most
appropriate given the liquidity of the Company and the nature of the Index Stock. 

(n) Debenture pricing
The 81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 and 103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 are valued at par and secured by a floating charge over
all assets of the Company.  Costs in relation to arranging the debt finance of the 81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 have been capitalised
and are amortised over the term of the finance.  Further details of the Debenture Stocks are disclosed in notes 13 and 19.

2. Income 2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Income from investments
Listed investments 16,123 12,796

Other income
Deposit interest 504 314
Loss from dealing activities of subsidiary (1) -

503 314

Total income 16,626 13,110

Income from investments:
Equity securities 11,132 7,925
Fixed interest securities 4,991 4,871

16,123 12,796

Total income comprises:
Dividends 11,132 7,925
Interest 5,495 5,185
Other income (1) -

16,626 13,110
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3. Management fee and other expenses 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Management fee (including irrecoverable VAT) 2,006 2,006 4,012 1,404 1,404 2,808

Performance fee (including irrecoverable VAT) - 1,679 1,679 - 1,861 1,861

2,006 3,685 5,691 1,404 3,265 4,669

Other expenses:
Directors' emoluments - fees 103 - 103 94 - 94

Auditors' remuneration for:
- audit 27 - 27 27 - 27

- taxation 12 - 12 12 - 12

- other services to the Group 18 - 18 23 - 23

Marketing costs 233 - 233 361 - 361

Other expenses (including irrecoverable VAT) 828 - 828 630 - 630

1,221 - 1,221 1,147 - 1,147

For the year ended 30 September 2006, the fee calculated in accordance with the Investment Management Agreement amounted to 0.8512% (including the out-performance
in excess of the cap carried forward from 2005).  Any out-performance in excess of the cap of 1% or under-performance in any year will be carried forward for use in the next
three years fee calculations on a first-in first-out basis.

Performance fees of £1,778,000 including VAT (2005: £1,977,000) and management fees of £678,000 including VAT (2005:474,000) were outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

Brief details of the Investment Management Agreement and fees are contained in the Report of the Directors.

4. Finance costs 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Bank overdraft interest 21 - 21 17 - 17 
Interest on other loans 2,370 - 2,370 2,344 - 2,344
Amortisation of Debenture issue expenses - 8 8 - 7 7

2,391 8 2,399 2,361 7 2,368

5. Taxation on ordinary activities

(a) Analysis of charge in year 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporation tax 2,345 (1,105) 1,240 1,598 (922) 676
Double taxation relief (682) - (682) (465) - (465)

1,663 (1,105) 558 1,133 (922) 211

Foreign withholding tax 816 - 816 684 - 684
Overseas tax reclaimable (164) - (164) (167) - (167)
Overseas tax written back - - - (211) - (211)

Total current tax for period (see note 5(b)) 2,315 (1,105) 1,210 1,439 (922) 517

Deferred tax 173 - 173 145 - 145

Total deferred tax for year 173 - 173 145 - 145

Total tax for year 2,488 (1,105) 1,383 1,584 (922) 662
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Notes to the Accounts continued

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the period
The tax assessed for the period is the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company (30%).

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Net revenue return before taxation 11,008 8,198

Corporation tax at 30% 3,302 2,459

Effects of:
Non-taxable UK dividends (781) (484)
Disallowed expenses 124 -
(Expenses charged to capital)/excess expenses (1,262) (1,586)
Overseas tax written off - 52
Overseas tax written back - (211)
Overseas dividends taxable on receipt (173) (139)
Tax relief to capital 1,105 922
Income taxable in different periods - 426

Current tax charge for the period (note 5(a)) 2,315 1,439

6. Dividends 2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2005 of 1.60p (2004 - 1.30p) per Ordinary Share 2,561 2,081
Special dividend for the year ended 30 September 2005 of 1.40p (2004 - nil) per Ordinary Share 2,241 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 of 0.80p (2005 - 0.60p) per Ordinary Share 1,281 961

6,083 3,042

Set out below is the final and special dividend proposed on Ordinary Shares in respect of the financial year , which is the basis on which
the requirements of section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1998 are considered.

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 of 0.80p (2005 - 0.60p) per Ordinary Share 1,281 961
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 of 3.20p (2005 - 1.60p) per Ordinary Share 5,122 2,561
Proposed special dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 of 1.00p (2005 - 1.40p) per Ordinary Share 1,601 2,241

8,004 5,763

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10 "Events after the Balance Sheet date" requires dividends to be recognised in the period in which they are paid.
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7. Earnings per Ordinary Share 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Basic 5.32p 50.05p 55.37p 4.13p 116.00p 120.13p

The total basic earnings per Ordinary Share is based on Group net gains for the financial year of £88,635,000 (2005: £192,307,000 as restated) and on 160,080,089 (2005:
160,080,089) Ordinary Shares, being the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

The total basic earnings per Ordinary Share figures detailed above can be further analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

The basic revenue earnings per Ordinary Share is based on Group revenue after taxation for the financial year of £8,520,000 (2005: £6,614,000) and on 160,080,089 (2005:
160,080,089) Ordinary Shares, being the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

The basic capital earnings per Ordinary Share is based on Group net gains for the financial year of £80,115,000 (2005: £185,693,000 as restated) and on 160,080,089 (2005:
160,080,089) Ordinary Shares, being the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

8. Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Group Company

(a) Securities Listed Unlisted total total
investments investments investments Subsidiary investments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Opening book cost 481,388 583 481,971 250 482,221
Opening unrealised appreciation 166,875 378 167,253 1,784 169,037

Opening fair value (restated - see note 22a) 648,263 961 649,224 2,034 651,258

Movements in the year:
Purchases at cost 555,150 3,607 558,757 - 558,757
Sales - proceeds (561,364) (497) (561,861) - (561,861)

- realised gains on sales 149,431 (9) 149,422 - 149,422
(Decrease)/increase in unrealised appreciation (64,489) 120 (64,369) (2) (64,371)

Closing fair value 726,991 4,182 731,173 2,032 733,205

Closing book cost 624,605 3,684 628,289 250 628,539 
Closing unrealised appreciation 102,386 498 102,884 1,782 104,666

Closing fair value 726,991 4,182 731,173 2,032 733,205

(b) Gains/(losses) on investments Group Company
£'000 £'000

Sales proceeds 561,861 561,861
Investments at cost (412,439) (412,439)

Realised gains on sales of securities based on historical cost 149,422 149,422
Less gains recognised as unrealised in previous year (84,607) (84,607)

Realised gains on sales of securities based on carrying value at previous year’s balance sheet date 64,815 64,815
Unrealised appreciation for the year 20,238 20,236

Net gains on investments 85,053 85,051

(c) Transaction costs 
Investment transaction costs on purchases and sales of investments during the year to 30 September 2006 amounted to £1,127,000 and
£851,000 respectively (2005: £933,000 and £646,000 respectively).
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9. Subsidiary undertaking
Country of   Proportion of nominal value of issued

Principal incorporation Description of shares and voting rights held by:
Name of undertaking activity and operation shares held Company (%)       Group (%)

BEST Securities Limited Dealing Subsidiary England Ordinary 100 100

10. Investments held by dealing subsidiary Group
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Listed (at fair value) 5 5

11. Other receivables Company Group
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Overseas tax recoverable 319 247 319 247
Income tax recoverable 7 7 7 7
Prepayments and accrued income 3,073 2,397 3,073 2,397
Other debtors 187 242 187 242

3,586 2,893 3,586 2,893

12. Other payables Company Group
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 2,024 2,026 - -
Other creditors 3,803 3,229 3,803 3,232

5,827 5,255 3,803 3,232

13. Non current liabilities: Debenture Stocks and Index Stock
Company Group

2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 8,515 8,515 8,515 8,515
81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 14,879 14,871 14,879 14,871
Index Stock 7,518 7,702 7,518 7,702

30,912 31,088 30,912 31,088

The movement on the 81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 represents the amortisation of issue expenses.  The combined market value of the two Debenture Stocks as at
30 September 2006 was £30.5 million (2005: £31.0 million).  The effect on the net asset value of deducting Debenture Stocks at market value rather than par is disclosed
in note 17.

The mid market prices of the 103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 and 81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 as at 30 September 2006 were 121.527p and 134.279p
respectively.

The Debenture Stocks are secured by a floating charge over all the assets of the Company.

During the year, 69,267 units of Index Stock were bought back by the Company for cancellation, at a price of 275.5p per unit, leaving 2,837,000 units in issue at the year
end.  The consideration paid was £190,831.

The mid market price of the Index Stock as at 30 September 2006 was 252.5p.
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14. Provision for deferred tax
The amounts of deferred taxation provided in the financial statements are set out below:

Group and Company

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Provided
In respect of the origination and reversal of timing differences 173 145

The movement in the provision for deferred taxation is as follows:
Opening balance 145 -
Charge to revenue account 173 145

Closing balance 318 145

The deferred tax provision is made up as follows:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Income taxable in different periods 369 226
Double tax relief on accrued dividends (51) (81)

318 145

15. Called-up share capital
Group and Company

2006 2006
and 2005 and 2005

Shares £'000
Ordinary Shares of 10p each:
Authorised 245,000,000 24,500

Allotted, called-up and fully paid:

At 30 September 2006 and 30 September 2005 160,080,089 16,008

4 1
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16. Reserves Capital Share Capital Capital
redemption premium reserve - reserve - Merger Revenue

reserve account realised unrealised reserve reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Group
At 1 October 2005 as restated (see note 22a) 2,927 28,078 351,854 162,416 41,406 16,050
Exchange losses - - (2,343) - - -
Net gains on realisation of investments - - 64,815 - - -
Increase in unrealised appreciation of investments in year - - - 20,238 - -
Transfer on disposal of investments - - 84,607 (84,607) - -
Net losses on buyback of Index Stock - - (7) - - -
Transfer on buyback of Index Stock - - (115) 115 - -
Amortisation of Debenture issue expenses - - (8) - - -
Performance element of management fee - - (1,679) - - -
Management fee charged to capital - - (2,006) - - -
Tax relief to capital - - 1,105 - - -
Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - (3,842)
Special dividend paid - - - - - (2,241)
Revenue profit for the year - - - - - 8,520

At 30 September 2006 2,927 28,078 496,223 98,162 41,406 18,487

Capital Share Capital Capital
redemption premium reserve - reserve - Merger Revenue

reserve account realised unrealised reserve reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Company
At 1 October 2005 as restated (see note 22a) 2,927 28,078 351,854 164,200 41,406 14,266 
Exchange losses - - (2,343) - - -
Net gains on realisation of investments - - 64,815 - - -
Increase in unrealised appreciation of investments in year - - - 20,236 - -
Transfer on disposal of investments - - 84,607 (84,607) - -
Net losses on buyback of Index Stock - - (7) - - -
Transfer on buyback of Index Stock - - (115) 115 - -
Amortisation of Debenture issue expenses - - (8) - - -
Performance element of management fee - - (1,679) - - -
Management fee charged to capital - - (2,006) - - -
Tax relief to capital - - 1,105 - - -
Ordinary dividends paid - - - - - (3,842)
Special dividend paid - - - - - (2,241)
Revenue profit for the year - - - - - 8,522

At 30 September 2006 2,927 28,078 496,223 99,944 41,406 16,705

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc



4 3

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

4 3

17. Net asset value
The net asset value per share and the net asset value attributable to the Ordinary Shares at the year end are calculated in accordance
with their entitlements in the Articles of Association and were as follows:

Net asset value Net asset value
per share attributable per share attributable

Company Group

Restated  Restated
(see note 22a) (see note 22a)

2006 2005 2006 2005
p p p p

Ordinary Shares (basic) 438.08 386.51 438.08 386.51

Net asset values Net asset values
attributable attributable
Company Group

Restated Restated 
(see note 22a) (see note 22a)

2006 2005 2006 2005
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Ordinary Shares (basic) 701,291 618,739 701,291 618,739

The movement during the year of the Group assets attributable to the Ordinary Shares were as follows:

2006 2005
Ordinary Ordinary

shares shares
(basic) (basic)
£'000 £'000

Total net assets attributable at beginning of year (as restated - see note 21 and 22a) 618,739 429,474
Total profit for the year 88,635 192,307
Dividends appropriated in the year (6,083) (3,042)

Net assets attributable at end of year 701,291 618,739

Basic net asset value per Ordinary Share is based on net assets and on 160,080,089 (2005: 160,080,089) Ordinary Shares being the number of Ordinary Shares in issue at the 
year end.

At the year end the net asset value per share adjusted to include the Debenture Stocks at market value rather than par was 433.66p (2005: 381.78p as restated).
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18. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at end of year

At At 30
1 October Cash Exchange September

2005 flow movement 2006
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Group
Cash at bank and on deposit 2,410 9,178 (2,343) 9,245

Company
Cash at bank and on deposit 2,404 9,181 (2,343) 9,242

19. Financial instruments and fund risk profile
The investment objective of the Company is to achieve capital growth through a focused portfolio of investments, particularly in
companies whose share prices stand at a discount to estimated underlying net asset value.

The Group's financial instruments comprise equity and fixed interest investments, cash balances and borrowings.  The Group makes use
of borrowings to achieve improved performance in rising markets.  The risk of borrowings may be reduced by raising the level of cash
balances or fixed interest investments held.

The Group may also enter into derivative transactions which comprise forward foreign exchange contracts (the purpose of which is to
manage currency risk arising from the Group's investing activities) and quoted options on indices appropriate to sections of the portfolio
(the purpose of which is to provide protection against falls in the capital values of the holdings).  The Group has not used derivatives
during the current financial year as part of its investment strategy but reserves the right to do so in the future.

The Company, as stated in the Report of the Directors on page 22, conducts its affairs so as to enable it to qualify as an investment trust.
As part of the rules governing this status, no investment at the time of purchase can represent more than 15% by value of the
Company's portfolio of investments.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market price risk which comprises equity price changes, foreign
currency exposure, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.  The Board regularly reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below. These policies have remained unchanged since 1 October, 2005.

There is no detailed disclosure of credit risk as this is not considered material in the context of the Group's overall activities.

Market price risk
The management of market price risk is part of the fund management process and is typical of equity investment.  The portfolio is
managed with an awareness of the effects of adverse price movements through detailed and continuing analysis with the objective of
maximising overall returns to Shareholders.  Further information on the investment portfolio is set out on pages 16 to 18.

Foreign currency risk
The Group invests in overseas securities and holds short-term foreign currency cash balances both of which give rise to currency risks.
It is not the Group's usual policy to hedge this risk.  Income denominated in foreign currencies is converted to sterling upon receipt.

Interest rate risk
When the Group retains cash balances the majority of the cash is held in deposit accounts.  The interest liability of the Index Stock
moves in accordance with movements in the income returns of the FTSE All-Share Index.  This exposure may be reduced by investing
in fixed assets expected to perform in line with the FTSE All-Share Index.

Liquidity risk
The Group's assets comprise mainly realisable securities.  Short-term flexibility is achieved by retaining cash and, where necessary,
through the use of overdraft facilities.

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc
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Currency exposure

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets comprise equity investments, fixed interest securities, short-term debtors and cash balances.

As at 30 September 2006, the Group's currency cash-flow profile of those financial assets were as follows:

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Sterling Euro JPY US$ Other Total

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 345,159 103,598 70,922 60,609 150,885 731,173
Investments 3 - - - 2 5
Cash at bank 8,982 - - 263 - 9,245
Short-term debtors 486 3,396 - 495 947 5,324

354,630 106,994 70,922 61,367 151,834 745,747

As at 30 September 2005, the Group's currency cash-flow profile of those financial assets were as follows (restated - see note 22a):

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Sterling Euro JPY US$ Other Total

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 284,750 121,289 40,495 42,353 160,337 649,224
Investments 3 - - - 2 5
Cash at bank 2,410 - - - - 2,410
Short-term debtors 2,078 1,898 54 95 1,194 5,319

289,241 123,187 40,549 42,448 161,533 656,958

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities comprise its 103/8 per cent and 81/8 per cent Debenture Stocks, the Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock
2013, and other short-term creditors.

As at 30 September 2006, the Group's currency cash-flow profile of those financial  liabilities were as follows:

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Sterling Euro JPY US$ Other Total

Short-term creditors (12,041) - - - (1,185) (13,226)
103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 (8,515) - - - - (8,515)
81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 (14,879) - - - - (14,879)
Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 (7,518) - - - - (7,518)
Provision for deferred tax (318) - - - - (318)

(43,271) - - - (1,185) (44,456)

As at 30 September 2005, the Group's currency cash-flow profile of those financial  liabilities were as follows (restated - see note 22a):

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Sterling Euro JPY US$ Other Total

Short-term creditors (3,344) - (657) - (2,985) (6,986)
103/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 (8,515) - - - - (8,515)
81/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 (14,871) - - - - (14,871)
Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 (7,702) - - - - (7,702)
Provision for deferred tax (145) - - - - (145)

(34,577) - (657) - (2,985) (38,219)



Notes to the Accounts continued

4 6

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

4 6

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and financial liabilities
As at 30 September 2006, the carrying amount of the Group's financial instruments, by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity
date, was as follows:

In more than In more than In more than In more than
1 year but 4 years but 6 years but 16 years but

In 1 year not more  not more not more not more
or less than 2 years than 5 years than 7 years than 17 years Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Non current assets 136,162 22,031 - - - 158,193

The weighted average effective interest rate of financial assets at fair value in 1 year or less is 5.83% and in  1 to 2 years is 4.99%.

Cash flow interest rate risk
Loans and receivables
- Cash at bank 9,245 - - - - 9,245

Financial liabilities
- 10 3/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 - -  (8,515) - - (8,515)
- 8 1/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 - - - - (14,879) (14,879)
- Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 - - - (7,518) - (7,518)

The effective interest rate of the financial liabilities in 4 to 5 years is 10.375%, in 6 to 7 years is 3.52% and in 16 to 17 years is 8.125%.

Non-interest rate risk
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Non-current assets 572,980 - - - - 572,980
- Investments 5 - - - - 5
Loans and receivables 
- Short-term debtors 5,324 - - - - 5,324
Other financial liabilities
- Short-term creditors (13,226) - - - - (13,226)
- Provision for deferred tax - (318) - - - (318)

British Empire Securities and General Trust plc
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As at 30 September 2005, the carrying amount of the Group's financial instruments, by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity
date,  was as follows (restated - see note 22a):

In more than In more than In more than In more than In more than
1 year but not  3 years but not 5 years but not  7 years but not 17 years but not 

In 1 year or more than  more than   more than  more  than more than Total 
less (£’000) 2 years (£’000) 4 years (£’000) 6 years (£’000) 8 years (£’000) 18 years (£’000) £’000

Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Non current assets 69,066 31,122 936 - - - 101,124

The weighted average effective interest rate of financial assets at fair value in 1 year or less is 6.88%, in  1 to 2 years is 7.23% and in 3
to 4 years is 2.62%.

Cash flow interest rate risk
Loans and receivables
- Cash at bank 2,410 - - - - - 2,410
Financial liabilities
- 10 3/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 - - - (8,515) - - (8,515)
- 8 1/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 - - - - - (14,871) (14,871)
- Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 - - - - (7,702) - (7,702)

The effective interest rate of the financial liabilities in 5 to 6 years is 10.375%, in 7 to 8 years is 3.08% and in 17 to 18 years is 8.125%.

Non-interest rate risk
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Non-current assets 548,100 - - - - - 548,100
- Investments 5 - - - - - 5
Loans and receivables
- Short-term debtors 5,319 - - - - - 5,319
Other financial liabilities
- Short-term creditors (6,986) - - - - - (6,986)
- Provision for deferred tax - (145) - - - - (145)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out below is a comparison by book values and fair values of all the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities as at 30 September: 

2006 2005
Book value (£’000) Fair value (£’000) Book value (£’000) Fair value (£’000)

Primary financial instruments:

Equity investments 572,980 572,980 548,100 548,100
Non-equity investments 158,193 158,193 101,124 101,124
Investments held by dealing subsidiary 5 5 5 5
Cash 9,245 9,245 2,410 2,410
10 3/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2011 (8,515) (10,348) (8,515) (10,847)
8 1/8 per cent Debenture Stock 2023 (14,879) (20,142) (14,871) (20,114)
Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 (7,518) (7,518) (7,702) (7,702)

Market values have been used to determine the fair value of the Group's Debenture Stocks and Index Stock.
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20. Contingencies, guarantees and financial commitments
At 30 September 2006 the Group had no contingent liability in respect of any investments carrying an obligation for future subscription
or underwriting commitments (2005: £nil).

21. Restatement of opening balances as at 30 September 2004
At 1 October 2005 the Company adopted International Financial Reporting Standards.  In accordance with IFRS 1, (First Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards) the following is a reconciliation of the balances as at 30 September 2004 previously
reported under the applicable UK Accounting Standards and with the SORP, to the restated IFRS results.

Previously reported Effect of Restated
30 September transition  30 September 

2004 to IFRS 2004 
Group Notes £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments 1 461,541  (3,377) 458,164  
Current assets 4,714 - 4,714 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2 (4,820) 2,081 (2,739) 

Total assets less current liabilities 461,435   (1,296) 460,139 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 3 (30,334)  (331) (30,665) 

Net assets 431,101 (1,627) 429,474  

Capital and reserves
Called up Ordinary share capital 16,008   - 16,008 
Capital redemption reserve 2,927  - 2,927  
Share premium 28,078 - 28,078  
Capital reserve - realised 246,363    - 246,363  
Capital reserve - unrealised 1,3 85,922   (3,708) 82,214  
Merger reserve 41,406 - 41,406
Revenue reserve 2 10,397   2,081 12,478  

Total equity 431,101 (1,627) 429,474  

Net asset value per Ordinary Share - Basic 269.30p    (1.02)p 268.28p  
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Previously reported Effect of Restated
30 September transition  30 September 

2004 to IFRS 2004 
Company Notes £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments 1 463,576   (3,377) 460,199   
Current assets 4,702   - 4,702 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2 (6,843) 2,081 (4,762) 

Total assets less current liabilities 461,435    (1,296) 460,139 
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 3 (30,334)  (331) (30,665) 

Net assets 431,101 (1,627) 429,474  

Capital and reserves
Called up Ordinary share capital 16,008   - 16,008 
Capital redemption reserve 2,927 - 2,927  
Share premium 28,078 - 28,078
Capital reserve - realised 246,363 - 246,363  
Capital reserve - unrealised 1,3 87,707    (3,708) 83,999   
Merger reserve 41,406 - 41,406
Revenue reserve 2 8,612 2,081 10,693   

Total equity 431,101 (1,627) 429,474

Net asset value per Ordinary Share - Basic 269.30p    (1.02)p 268.28p  

Notes to the reconciliation

1. Investments are designated as held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS and are carried at bid prices which total £458,164,000 for the Group and £460,199,000 for
the Company. They were carried at mid prices previously under UK GAAP. The aggregate differences, being a revaluation downwards of £3,377,000 also decreased Capital
reserve - unrealised.

2. No provision has been made for the final dividend on the Ordinary Shares for the year ended 30 September 2004 of £2,081,000.  Under IFRS, the final dividend is not
recognised until paid.

3. The Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 is designated as held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS and carried at the offer price with a fair value of £7,286,000.
Previously the capital value was determined by reference to the level of the FTSE All-Share Index. The difference, being a revaluation downwards of £331,000 also decreased
Capital reserve - unrealised.
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22. (a) Restatement of opening balances as at 30 September 2005
At 1 October 2005 the Company adopted International Financial Reporting Standards.  In accordance with IFRS 1, (First Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards) the following is a reconciliation of the balances as at 30 September 2005 previously
reported under the applicable UK Accounting Standards and with the SORP, to the restated IFRS results.

Previously reported Effect of Restated
30 September transition  30 September 

2005 to IFRS 2005
Group Notes £'000  £'000 £'000

Investments 1 652,456   (3,232) 649,224   
Current assets 7,734   - 7,734  
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2 (11,788) 4,802  (6,986) 

Total assets less current liabilities 648,402    1,570 649,972  
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 3 (31,366)  278 (31,088) 
Provision for deferred tax (145)  - (145) 

Net assets 616,891 1,848  618,739  

Capital and reserves
Called up Ordinary share capital 16,008 - 16,008
Capital redemption reserve 2,927 - 2,927
Share premium 28,078 - 28,078  
Capital reserve - realised 351,854     - 351,854  
Capital reserve - unrealised 1,3 165,370    (2,954) 162,416   
Merger reserve 41,406   - 41,406  
Revenue reserve 2 11,248 4,802  16,050   

Total equity 616,891 1,848  618,739   

Net asset value per Ordinary Share - Basic 385.36p    1.15p 386.51p 
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Previously reported Effect of Restated
30 September transition  30 September 

2005 to IFRS 2005
Company Notes £'000  £'000 £'000

Investments 1 654,490    (3,232) 651,258    
Current assets 7,723    - 7,723  
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2 (13,811) 4,802  (9,009) 

Total assets less current liabilities 648,402    1,570 649,972  
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 3 (31,366)  278 (31,088)
Provision for deferred tax (145)  - (145) 

Net assets 616,891  1,848 618,739   

Capital and reserves
Called up Ordinary share capital 16,008   - 16,008 
Capital redemption reserve 2,927  - 2,927  
Share premium 28,078 - 28,078  
Capital reserve - realised 351,854     - 351,854 
Capital reserve - unrealised 1,3 167,154     (2,954) 164,200    
Merger reserve 41,406 - 41,406  
Revenue reserve 2 9,464     4,802  14,266    

Total equity 616,891 1,848  618,739   

Net asset value per Ordinary Share - Basic 385.36p    1.15p 386.51p  

Notes to the reconciliation

1. Investments are designated as held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS and are carried at bid prices which total £649,224,000 for the Group and £651,258,000
for the Company.  They were carried at mid prices previously under UK GAAP.  The aggregate differences, being a revaluation downwards of £3,232,000 also decreased
Capital reserve - unrealised.

2. No provision has been made for the final ordinary and special dividends on the Ordinary Shares for the year ended 30 September 2005 of £2,561,000 and £2,241,000
respectively.  Under IFRS, the final ordinary and special dividends are not recognised until paid.

3. The Equities Index Unsecured Loan Stock 2013 is designated as held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS and carried at the offer price with a fair value of
£7,702,000.  Previously the capital value was determined by reference to the level of the FTSE All-Share Index.  The difference, being a revaluation upwards of £278,000 also
increased Capital reserve - unrealised.
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(b) Reconciliation of the Consolidated Statement of Total Return to the Consolidated Income 
Statement for the year ended 30 September 2005
Under IFRS the Income Statement is the equivalent of the Statement of Total Return reported previously.

Basic EPS 
Group Notes £'000 impact pence

Total transfer to reserves per the Statement of Total Return 185,790 -   
Add back dividends paid and proposed 1 5,763 -  
Investments held at fair value changed from mid to  

bid basis at 30 September 2004 2 3,377   2.11 
Investments held at fair value changed from mid to

bid basis at 30 September 2005 2 (3,232) (2.02) 
Equity Index Stock held at fair value changed from Index 

value to offer basis at 30 September 2004 3 331 0.21 
Equity Index Stock held at fair value changed from Index 

value to offer basis at 30 September 2005 3 278 0.17 

Net profit per the Income Statement 192,307   0.47  

Notes to the reconciliation

1. Interim, final and special ordinary dividends declared and paid during the period are dealt with through the Statement of Changes in Equity.

2. The portfolio valuations at 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2005 are required to be valued at fair value under IFRS.  These values are lower than the previous
valuations by £3,377,000 and £3,232,000 respectively.

3. The Equity Index Stock valuation at 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2005 is required to be valued at fair value under IFRS.  The value at 30 September 2004 is
lower than the previous valuation by £331,000 and the value at 30 September 2005 is higher than the previous valuation by £278,000.

(c) Reconciliation of the Cash Flow Statements for the year ended 30 September 2005
Previously Effect of  Adjusted

reported cash flows transition to IFRS cash flows 
Group Notes £'000 £'000 £'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1 6,339    13 6,352  
Servicing of finance 1 (2,357)  2,357  -  
Taxation 1 119    (119) -  
Capital expenditure financial investment 2,251     (2,251) -  
Equity dividends paid 2 (3,042)    3,042 -   

Net cash inflow before financing 3,310    3,042 6,352   
Financing 2 (348)    (3,042)   (3,390)   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,962  -  2,962    

Company

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1 6,335    13 6,348  
Servicing of finance 1 (2,357)  2,357  -  
Taxation 1 119    (119) -  
Capital expenditure financial investment 2,251     (2,251) -
Equity dividends paid 2 (3,042)    3,042 -

Net cash inflow before financing 3,306 3,042 6,348   
Financing 2 (348)    (3,042)   (3,390)   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,958 - 2,958 

Notes to the reconciliation

1.  Bank interest, debenture interest, Equity Index Stock interest, taxation and capital expenditure and financial investment have now been analysed within operating activities.

2.  Ordinary dividends paid are now analysed within financing.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This Report is prepared in accordance with Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985.  As the Board of Directors is
comprised solely of non-executive Directors, it is exempt under the Listing Rules from appointing a Remuneration
Committee. The determination of Directors’ fees is a matter dealt with by the whole Board.

It is the Company’s policy to determine the level of Directors’ fees having regard to the level of fees payable to non-
executive Directors in the industry generally, the role that individual Directors fulfill in respect of Board and Committee
responsibilities and the time committed to the Company’s affairs. The Directors’ attendance at meetings is given on p21.
Following a review in 2004 of Directors’ fees the basic annual fees paid to the Chairman and each Director were increased
in line with the Company’s peer group to £24,000 and £16,000 respectively from 1 October 2004, with the chairman of the
Audit Committee receiving an additional £2,500 for the extra work involved.  The annual aggregate limit on fees payable
to the Board of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association is £150,000.

No element of the Directors’ remuneration is performance related, no Director past or present has any entitlement to
pensions and the Company has not awarded any share options or long-term performance incentives to any of the
Directors.  The Directors’ interests in contractual arrangements with the Company are as shown on page 23 of the financial
statements.  Subject to these exceptions, no other Directors were interested in contracts with the Company during the
period or subsequently.  None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company.

The Board requires that Directors shall not remain in office for longer than three years without submitting themselves for
re-election.

A resolution to receive and adopt the Directors’ Remuneration Report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Directors and Officers liability insurance cover is maintained by the Company on behalf of the Directors.

Total Shareholder return
The chart below illustrates the total Shareholder return for a holding in the Company’s shares as compared to the
Datastream Global Growth Investment Trust Index, which the Board has adopted as the measure for both the Company’s
performance and that of the Manager for the year.

Share Price total return vs Datastream Global Growth Investment Trust Index total return Five years to 30/09/06
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British Empire Securities and General Trust plc

Directors’ emoluments (audited information)
The Directors who served in the year received the following emoluments in the form of fees:

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

IS Robertson CBE 24.0 24.0
P R Allen 18.5 18.5
SAR Bates † 12.0 -
R Blomfield-Smith 16.0 16.0
J C Walton * - 3.9
PSS Macpherson 16.0 16.0
J M May 16.0 16.0

102.5 94.4

* Retired as a Director 16 December 2004.    

† Appointed a Director 6 January 2006.

Sums paid to Third Parties (audited information)
Of the fees disclosed above, £16,000 (2005 - £19,875) was payable to third parties in respect of making available the
services of Directors. These fees were assigned £16,000 (2005 - £16,000) to Caledonia Group Services Limited (J M May)
and £nil (2005 - £3,875) to Asset Value Investors Limited (JC Walton).

13 November 2006 By order of the Board

Phoenix Administration Services Limited

Secretary 
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We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of British Empire
Securities and General Trust plc for the year ended 30 September 2006 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes 1 to 22.  These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.  We have also audited the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act
1985.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union as set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view, the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and whether the information given in the Report of the Directors
is consistent with the financial statements.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’
remuneration and other transactions are not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not.  We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements.  The other information comprises only the Company Summary, Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement,
Company’s History, Historical Record, Investment Manager, Investment Manager’s Review, Investment Portfolio, Capital
Structure, Board of Directors, Report of the Directors, the un-audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report,
Shareholder Information, Notice of Annual General Meeting and Company Information.  We consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
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Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board.  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.  It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

• the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 September 2006 and of its net return for the year then ended;

• the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent
Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2006;

• the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

• the information given in the Report of the Directors is consistent with the financial statements.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Registered auditor 

London

13 November 2006
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Dividends
Shareholders who wish to have dividends paid directly into a bank account rather than by cheque to their registered address
can complete a mandate form for the purpose. Mandates may be obtained from Lloyds TSB Registrars, PO Box 28448,
Finance House, Orchard Brae, Edinburgh EH3 5DE on request. The Company operates the BACS system for the payment
of dividends. Where dividends are paid directly into Shareholders’ bank accounts, dividend tax vouchers are sent directly
to Shareholders’ registered addresses.

Share Prices
The Company’s Ordinary Shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange under ‘Investment Trusts’. Prices are given daily
in The Financial Times, The Times, The Daily Telegraph, The Scotsman and The Evening Standard.

Change of Address
Communications with Shareholders are mailed to the address held on the share register. In the event of a change of
address or other amendment this should be notified to Lloyds TSB Registrars at the address given above, under the
signature of the registered holder.

Daily Net Asset Value
The net asset value of the Company’s shares can be obtained by contacting Customer Services on 0845 850 0181 or via the
website, www.british-empire.co.uk

AVI ISA
The AVI Individual Savings Account (ISA) is a savings account that allows you to invest up to £7,000 in stocks and shares
each tax year until 5 April 2010 in line with HMRC limitations.  ISAs fall into two categories; a Mini ISA that allows you
to invest up to £3,000 and a Maxi ISA that lets you take advantage of the full £7,000 limit.

AVI PEP
Personal Equity Plans (PEPs), were introduced in 1987 as an easy straightforward way to make medium to long-term
investments on the stock market without having to pay tax on any income or capital gains.  Although April 1999 was the
last date in which you could pay into a PEP, you can still transfer funds from any existing plan into an AVI PEP.

AVI Share Plan
The AVI Share Plan is a savings plan which aims to provide a simple and low cost way for private investors to purchase
shares in the British Empire Securities and General Trust. Lump sum payments or regular monthly deposits can be made
to the Share Plan.

Financial Calendar 2006/2007

• 14 December 2006 Annual General Meeting

• 5 January 2007 Final and Special Dividends paid on Ordinary Shares

• May 2007 Announcement of interim results

• May 2007 Posting of Interim Report

• June 2007 Interim Dividend paid on Ordinary Shares

• November 2007 Announcement of annual results

• November 2007 Posting of Annual Report

• December 2007 Annual General Meeting
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Notice is hereby given that the One Hundred and Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of British Empire Securities and
General Trust plc will be held at Grocers’ Hall, Princes Street, London EC2R 8AD at 12.00 noon on Thursday 14
December 2006 to consider the following business:

Ordinary Business
1. To receive and adopt the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2006 together with the

Reports of the Directors and the Auditors.

2. To approve a final Ordinary Dividend of 3.20 pence per Ordinary Share.

3. To approve a Special Dividend for the year of 1.00 pence per Ordinary Share.

4. To re-elect Mr Iain Robertson a Director, retiring in accordance with the Revised Combined Code.

5. To re-elect Mr Strone Macpherson, a Director retiring under the Articles of Association.

6. To elect Mr Steve Bates, a Director retiring under Article 71 of the Articles of Association.

7. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s Auditors and authorise the Directors to determine the Auditors’
remuneration.

8. To receive the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

9. THAT, the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 80 of the
Companies Act 1985 (‘Act’) to allot relevant securities (as defined in the said Section 80 of the Act) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £2,400,000 provided that the authority hereby granted shall expire at the earlier of the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2007 or 13 March 2008 unless otherwise renewed, varied or revoked.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:

10. THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised and empowered to exercise all
the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined in Section 80 of the Act) pursuant to Section 95 of
the Act as if Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this authority and power shall
expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 13 March 2008 and
shall be limited to:

(i) the allotment of any such securities having an aggregate nominal value not exceeding £800,400 being
approximately 5 per cent of the equity share capital currently in issue;

(ii) the allotment of equity securities at a price (excluding expenses) of not less than the net asset value per share
on the day preceding allotment or, if earlier, the agreement to allot; and

(iii) the transfer or sale of any shares held by the Company as treasury shares at a price (excluding expenses) not less
than the net asset value per share on the day preceding such transfer or sale;
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save that the authority and power hereby granted shall enable the Company to make offers or agreements which would

or might require any such securities to be allotted, transferred or sold after the expiry of such period and the Directors

may allot, transfer or sell such securities in pursuance of such offers or agreements as if the authority hereby granted

had not expired.

11. THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised in accordance with Section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 to

make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163 of the said Act) of the Ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company (‘Shares’) provided that:

(i) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 23,996,005.

(ii) the minimum price which may be paid for a Share shall be £0.10;

(iii) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for a Share shall be 5 per cent above the average
of the mid market values of the Shares on the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the day of purchase; and

(iv) unless otherwise varied or renewed, the authority hereby conferred shall expire on 13 March 2008 save that
the Company may, prior to such expiry, enter into contract(s) to purchase shares which will or may be completed
or executed wholly or partly after such expiry and the Company may purchase such shares as if the authority hereby
granted had not expired.

By Order of the Board

For and on behalf of 

Phoenix Administration Services Limited - Secretary

Springfield Lodge Registered Office:

Colchester Road Bennet House

Chelmsford 54 St. James’s Street

Essex CM2 5PW London SW1A 1JT

13 November 2006

Notes
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, to vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not also be a member

of the Company.

2. A form of proxy is enclosed for use in connection with the business set out above. This form of proxy should be completed and sent, together with the power of attorney
or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney, to reach the Registrars at the address printed on the form of proxy
not later than 12 noon on 12 December 2006. The lodgement of a proxy form shall not preclude a member from attending the meeting and voting in person.

3. The register of Directors’ interests in the Ordinary Shares of the Company will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business
hours (Saturdays excepted) from the date of this notice until the date of the Annual General Meeting and at Grocers’ Hall for fifteen minutes prior to and during
the Meeting.

4. There are no service contracts between any of the Directors and the Company.
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